
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate 
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House 117 Botchergate, Carlisle, 

Cumbria CA1 1RD 

Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 
  

  

 

 
1 

 
 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the LEP 

Scrutiny Board 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) SCRUTINY BOARD 
 
A meeting of the LEP Scrutiny Board will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Tuesday 20 September 2022 

 Time: 10.30 am 

 Place: Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House 

 
 
 
 
Catherine A. Parkinson  
Interim Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring Officer)  
 
 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  
Direct Line: 07946032514 
Email: daniel.hamilton@cumbri.gov.uk 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 

mailto:democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk


 

 
2 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
  
County Council Representatives 
 

 

Mrs H Carrick 
Mr S Collins 
Mr P Dew 
Mrs S Evans 
Mr K Hamilton 
Mr K Hitchen 
Mr M Hawkins 
Mr N Hughes 
Mr J Lister 
Mrs C McCarron-Holmes Mr B McEwan 
Mr P Turner 
Mr B Wearing (Chair) 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
 
 
District Council Representatives 
 
Allerdale Borough Council – Ms C Bell  
Barrow Borough Council – Vacant  
Carlisle City Council – Mr J Bainbridge  

Copeland Borough Council – Mr J Kane  

Eden District Council – Mrs M Robinson  

South Lakeland District Council –Vacant 

 
 
 
  
  
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk   
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Democratic Services Unit at the address 
overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


 

 
3 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES 
 

To receive any apologies for absence.  
   
 
2   MEMBERSHIP 

 
To receive any updates on the membership of the Board.  
   
 
3   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2022 as an accurate and 
complete record.  
 
  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
 
4   CLEP OVERVIEW AND IMPLICATIONS OF LEP REVIEW 

 
To consider a presentation from the Chief Executive – CLEP.  
   
 
 
5   2022/23 DELIVERY PLAN 

 
To consider a report from the Chief Executive – CLEP.  
 
  (Pages 11 - 42) 
 
 
6   CUMBRIA CLEAN ENERGY STRATEGY 

 
To consider a report from the Chief Executive – CLEP. 
 
  (Pages 43 - 70) 
 
 
7   CLEP ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING UPDATE 

 
To receive a briefing from the Chair of the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny 
Board.  
 
  (Pages 71 - 72) 
 



 

 
4 

 
8   DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 

 
The date and time of the next meeting of the Board is still to be confirmed. 
   
 

 



  1 

 

 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board 

 
10.30 am, 16 March 2022 

 
 
 

Present at the meeting 
 
Mr B Wearing (Chair) 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
Mr N Hughes 
Mr J Lister 
Mr R Ashcroft 
Mr K Hamilton 
Mr B McEwan 
Mr P Turner 
Mrs H Carrick 
Mrs C McCarron-Holmes 
 
 
Also in attendance 
 
Mrs J Lappin – Chief Executive (CLEP) 
Lord R Inglewood – Chair (CLEP Board) 
Mrs C Notman – Strategic Policy and 
Scrutiny Advisor 
Mr D Hamilton – Democratic Services 
Officer 

 
 
 

 
 
 
50 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Mr P Dew, Mrs S Evans, Mr K Hitchen and Mr S 
Collins.  
 
 
51 MEMBERSHIP  
 
Members welcomed Mrs H Carrick and Mr K Hitchen as permanent members of the 
Board.  
 
 
52 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.  
 
 
53 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED that, the press and public not be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of any items of business on the agenda. 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (16.3.22) 
 
 

 

 
54 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that,  the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 9 

September 2021 were confirmed as an accurate record.  
 
 
55 ECONOMIC OVERVIEW  
 
The Chair began the meeting by congratulating the Chief Executive – CLEP on the 
award of her recent MBE.  
 
Members were then provided with a presentation which provided an overview 
covering 4 main subject areas – Governance, Delivery, Strategy and Economic 
Overview.  
 
Beginning with Governance, members heard that Local Assurance Framework (LAF) 
had been fully reviewed and revised in September 2021 and the CLEP’s Compliance 
Review had been completed by the Accountable Body. In addition there was a 
further Update to the LAF completed in January 2021. In terms of board 
membership, the CLEP Board was fully compliant with representation requirements 
and the ‘Gender’ Target  Milestone had been met with plans in place to reach 50% 
by 2023. Members were also provided with an update on the progress of the CLEP’s 
Futures Forum and the implementation of the Futures Framework and heard that 
members now had personal development plans in place.  
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP then provided an update on the Delivery subject area. 
With regards to Growth Deal funding, members heard that funding had been 
allocated by March 2021 as required that seven projects were being actively 
managed towards completion. The Getting Building fund had also been fully 
committed to a programme which would delivered in line with the agreed Change 
Controls. The Growth Hub funding was on track to deliver spend and outcomes 
despite being back loaded due to contracting delays. Members also heard that the 
Careers and Enterprise Programme had a revised Strategic Plan with a new website 
about to be launched and had full coverage including SEND.  
 
An outline of the Strategy Work of the CLEP was given which included a discussion 
about the STEP Application of which it was stated that Cumbria’s suitability was in 
the top five nationally. Members also heard that the Cumbria Transport and 
Infrastructure Plan was completed and published and that the Business 
Decarbonisation Plan was about to be launched.  
 
The Chair of the CLEP Board discussed the economic landscape and how difficult it 
was to forecast the medium term impact on the local economy. A discussion then 
took place regarding the increased cost of living and then this discussion moved onto 
the impact of increased costs on schemes such as the Future High Street Fund and 
Towns Deal. The Chief Executive – CLEP explained that  these projects were led by 
the District Councils with oversight from Central Government but it would be very 
important for CLEP to understand what the contingency planning arrangements were 
if costs were to increase or if market demand was impacted. Members expressed 
their concerns regarding the price of fertiliser and the impact that this would have on 
the food supply. The Vice-Chair asked about the financial contributions made toward 

6



 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (16.3.22) 3 
 
 

 

the A595 schemes. The Chief Executive – CLEP explained that the CLEP would 
make financial contributions but the remainder would come from the project applicant 
which would draw from the Department of Transport and the County Council as 
highway authority. The Chief Executive – CLEP answered a question regarding 
prudential borrowing and pension fund investment to facilitate economic 
opportunities in Cumbria. She explained that conversations had taken place in the 
past with the County Council as the largest authority within the fund but the 
difficulties presented by having the LGPS as part of a wider fund had meant these 
investments had not taken place.  
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP provided further detail to the Economic Overview 
subject area by discussing the short/medium term ‘hangover’ from COVID which 
meant grant funding was in very short supply. However, she explained that recovery 
had generated demand for products and services from Cumbrian businesses and 
lots of businesses were now very busy. Members heard that staffing and labour 
shortages had continued to act as a constraint on output, profit recovery and growth 
for many businesses.  
 
In relation to the economic impact of the Russian invasion of Ukraine, members 
heard that the energy price increase had already had a serious impact on business 
and large businesses faced cost very large increases. Similarly fuel prices have had 
a significant impact on the logistics sector and on farmers. Supply chain issues had 
caused increased input and output costs, for example with metals including copper 
and nickel often used in plumbing supplies. Members then heard about the 
increased risk and concern relating to cyber security. 
 
On the topic of growth priorities, members were provided with an overview of the 
opportunities presented by new investment in clean energy production. Including, the 
Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP), offshore wind and Small Modular 
Reactors (SMR).  
 
 
56 JOURNEY TO NET ZERO  
 
Members considered a report on the ongoing activities of Cumbria LEP in support of 
Net Zero targets. Members heard that the Cumbria LEP (CLEP) had identified Net 
Zero as one of its three strategic touchstones alongside productivity and inclusive 
growth. In order to effectively contribute to Net Zero, CLEP had identified the twin 
priorities of supporting clean energy generation and helping businesses to 
decarbonise.  
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP explained that CLEP was currently in the process of 
developing a Clean Energy Strategy, which synthesised all of the individual action 
plans produced for each technology type. The structure of the report would be 
presented to the March meeting of the CLEP Board, with the draft report produced 
shortly after. A consultation process would then take place prior to the finalisation of 
the strategy in May 2022.  
 
Members received an update on the Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production 
(STEP) site. Members heard that since the shortlist was announced a further 
technical site visit was completed on 1 December 2021 together with a clarification 

7



4 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (16.3.22) 
 
 

 

workshop to secure further information. CLEP had also submitted a response to 
Government’s Green Paper, which set out the proposals for the regulation of future 
fusion energy facilities. This was submitted by the 24 December 2021 deadline. The 
UKAEA Recommendation Panel visited the site on 27 January 2022 to meet with 
both strategic and technical leads. This was supported by two stakeholder events 
which both took place in late January. The Chief Executive – CLEP anticipated that 
the formal assessment would be completed by UKAEA by end of May, at latest. A 
recommendation would then be made to the BEIS Secretary of State, with a decision 
expected before the end of the 2022 calendar year.  
 
Members also heard that the CLEP Chair and Chief Executive had also met with the 
Chief Executive of Rolls Royce SMR to outline Cumbria’s credentials to be an early 
adopter for siting of a Small Modular Reactor. 
 
Following questions regarding Net Zero targets the Chief Executive – CLEP 
explained that commitments were always underpinned with actions aligned with 
policy and investment. She explained that the most significant opportunity was the 
Spherical Tokamak siting project which would fundamentally transformative for 
Cumbria as well as national and international energy generation.  
 
Members noted the contents of the report.  
 
 
57 LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER AND IMPLICATIONS   
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP provided a report which sought to detail the implications 
of the government’s Levelling Up White Paper for LEPs. The White Paper confirmed 
that LEPs would continue to play a key role in supporting the levelling up agenda 
across England. A letter from Government was expected to be sent to LEPs shortly 
clarifying roles, responsibilities and funding, going forward on the back of the 
Levelling Up White Paper. This was anticipated in March and an update on the 
content of this would be provided if it has been received in advance of the next 
Scrutiny Board. 
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP outlined the missions which would guide the UK’s 
approach to levelling up over the next decade and set the medium-term ambition of 
the government which would serve as an anchor for the expectations and plans of 
the private sector and civil society. 
 
The Chair highlighted the significance of reminding decision makers that levelling-up 
must incorporate rural Britain as much as urban Britain. Following this, members 
discussed the importance of finding new transport solutions and ensure that 
processes were in place to improve transport in rural areas. Members spoke about 
extra interventions from government to ensure that localities were able to deliver on 
the commitments made in the White Paper.  
 
Members noted the report.  
 
 
58 REPURPOSING THE CUMBIRA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND  
 
 

8



 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (16.3.22) 5 
 
 

 

Members considered a report on the topic of the potential future different uses of the 
resources generated by the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund. 
 
The Cumbria LEP received a £6,162,467 Growing Places Funding Allocation in 
2012. This was renamed the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund (CIF) and had been used 
to invest in a series of capital projects. The original intention was that CIF would be 
an evergreen fund where repayments of principal and interest would be recycled 
back into the fund for further loan-based investment in future investment projects. 
Cumbria County Council had managed CIF on behalf of CLEP. 
 
It has been found that the fund could do more good providing businesses with much 
needed capital grant. The current available resources that had not been committed 
could be re-invested from CIF into creating a new and more flexible “Growing Our 
Potential” grant scheme (GOP 2) for Cumbria’s businesses. The resources that 
could be available to be invested was currently £1.06 million potentially rising to 
£1.35 million by the end of 2021/22, although this forecast would be subject to 
change. 
 
Alternatively, some of the future repayments that were more certain and predictable 
could be earmarked for supporting revenue expenditure by Cumbia LEP to deliver 
economic development and business support activities across Cumbria. 
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP explained that as the CLEP were committed to 
transparency and openness they would only look to repurpose funding in line with 
due process and after bringing it to the Scrutiny Board.  
 
The South Lakeland District Council representative expressed his support of the 
repurposing of the earmarked funds and the importance of taking a strategic view. 
Members discussed the proposals and sought clarity on the origin of the fund. The 
Chief Executive – CLEP explained that the intention was always that this fund be 
retained by the CLEP and was not refundable to government. 
 
The Chair of the LEP Scrutiny Board provided an overview of the benefits of 
repurposing the fund as he sees it and asked members whether they agreed to the 
creation of a new and more flexible “Growing Our Potential” grant scheme. This was 
AGREED and members noted the report.  
 
 
59 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The date and time of the next meeting was still to be confirmed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended 12:00PM 

9



6 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (16.3.22) 
 
 

 

 

10



CLEP  
DELIVERY  

PLAN

2022-23

11

Agenda Item 5



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 2

CONTENT

1. INTRODUCTION 3

2. THE OPERATING CONTEXT  5

3.SUPPORTING ECONOMIC RECOVERY 8

4. STRATEGY 9

5. GOVERNANCE 14

5. DEVELOPMENT OF STAFF AND CAPABILITIES OF CLEP 19

6. MULTI-LEP AND WORKING OUTSIDE CUMBRIA 21

7. PROGRAMME ACTIVITY 23

8. ANNEX A - CUMBRIA CAREERS HUB STRATEGIC PLAN 2021/22 28

12



1.1  The Annual Delivery Plan, which is to be produced by all Local Enterprise Partnerships was 
initially introduced in the “Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships” report published by 
Government in July 2018. At the point that the Annual Delivery Plan was introduced it was 
assumed that this would be aligned with the priorities outlined within the Local Industrial 
Strategy. However, in the absence of Local Industrial Strategies being approved in every 
area, Government introduced a ‘light-touch’ version, which would provide the framework 
for the production of Annual Delivery Plans. 

1.2  This light-touch version was the template adopted for the production of Annual Delivery 
Plans over the last three financial years. Again, this version has been used to produce 
the 2022/23 Annual Delivery Plan. The activities and focus in this Plan are driven by the 
priorities identified in Cumbria’s Local Industrial Strategy and Restart, Reboot, Rethink – A 
Plan for Cumbria’s Economic Recovery. 

1.3    The LEP Review was conducted throughout the 2020/21 financial year, with the publication 
of the Levelling Up White Paper on 2 February 2022 importantly confirming that LEPs 
would continue to play a key role in supporting the levelling up agenda across England, 
stating “For the last decade, LEPs have acted as important organisational means of 
bringing together businesses and local leaders to drive economic growth across England. 
They have also been responsible for the delivery of a number of major funding streams. 
It is important to retain the key strengths of these local, business-oriented institutions in 
supporting private sector partnerships and economic clusters, while at the same time 
better integrating their services and business voice into the UK Government’s new 
devolution plans. To that end, the UK Government is encouraging the integration of LEPs 
and their business boards into MCAs, the GLA and County Deals, where these exist. Where 
a devolution deal does not yet exist, LEPs will continue to play their vital role in supporting 
local businesses and the local economy”. 

1.4  The details on the integration process were outlined in a 
joint letter from Neil O’Brien, MP and Paul Scully, MP to 
LEP Chairs on 31 March 2022. The Levelling Up White 
Paper identified Cumbria as a ‘priority place’ for 
devolution. However, at this point in time no 
formal devolution process has been agreed 
and as such the Cumbria LEP (CLEP) is 
categorised as a Pathway II LEP, which 
are those areas that are maintaining 
LEPs until a Devolution Deal is agreed. 

INTRODUCTION
1

CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 313



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 4

1.5  Areas operating under Pathway II are required 
to publish their 2022/23 Delivery Plan by 30 
June 2022. This sets out how LEPs intend to use 
the full range of their core functions and roles 
to support their local economies and local 
decision-making, including:

 •   embedding a strong, independent 
and diverse local business voice into 
the local decision-making, which might 
include advising Local Authorities on the 
development of local plans and applications 
to local growth funds such as the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) or Levelling Up 
Fund, where projects have an economic 
development purpose. 

 •  Developing local economic strategies and maintain business and economic 
intelligence for their areas. This includes activity to support the levelling up missions. 

 •  Delivering activity on behalf of Government Departments, including business support; 
international trade and investment activity; Careers Hubs; Local Skills Bootcamps; local 
skills analysis via Skills Advisory Panels.

 •  Post completion monitoring of outputs, outcomes and impacts from the Growth Deal 
and Getting Building Fund. 

1.6  CLEP will be working with Government to develop measures to report against, within 
these plans, which will be considered as part of our Annual Assurance process. In the 
interim, CLEP will continue to comply with the current National Local Growth Assurance 
Framework (NLGAF). 

1.7  Alongside other Pathway II LEPs, CLEP will need to submit a draft delivery plan for 2023/24 
by 25 November 2022, and work on the content of this will commence once Government 
has clarified its expectations on this.  

1.8  In line with the Plan produced in previous years’ this Delivery Plan is structured around the 
three themes of the Annual Performance Review – Strategy, Governance and Delivery. 

1.9  Cumbria, alongside the rest of the UK, is currently experiencing one of the most 
challenging economic periods with businesses facing a range of issues that are hampering 
economic recovery and citizens facing one of the most acute cost of living squeezes in 
recent memory. This is the economic context in which this Annual Delivery Plan has been 
produced.

1.10  In introducing this Delivery Plan it is important to recognise the financial and secondee 
resource that is provided by Sellafield and BAE to help deliver CLEP’s activities. This 
is alongside the in-kind support provided by Cumbria County Council as CLEP’s 
Accountable Body and the match funding support provided by Allerdale Borough 
Council, Barrow Borough Council, Carlisle City Council, Copeland Borough Council, Eden 
District Council and South Lakeland District Council, which is very much appreciated.  

14



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 5

 THE OPERATING CONTEXT 
2.1   In planning for 2022/23 it is recognised that the overhang from the pandemic, the war 

in Ukraine and managing the changes following EU Exit are having a profound impact 
on the economy and businesses. This economic overview reflects the position as at the 
beginning of May 2022.

Inflation and Interest Rates  

2.2  There has been a steady upwards increase in the rate of inflation as a result of demand 
pressures as we emerged from COVID; costs pressures including energy and food prices. 
UK inflation (CPI) was at 7% but forecasted (by the Bank of England) to peak at over 10% 
in Autumn 20221. In the Autumn, 4% points of the forecast 10% inflation will be directly due 
to energy costs.  However, the latest figures released confirms that inflation is now at 9%.

2.3  High inflation is creating economic problems for businesses in setting prices and wages 
and in all forms of planning. It is also the case that inflation is hitting some sectors harder 
than others. The cost of some raw materials, other inputs as well as energy have risen 
particularly rapidly (timber, steel for instance). Clearly, not all businesses are able to pass 
costs on. Overall, producer inputs costs have increased by 19% on the year to March 
2022 the highest rate since records began2. The fastest increases have been in imported 
food (11%), fuel (26%), crude oil (98%), chemical (19%), metals & minerals (23%) and other 
produced materials (23%). Wholesale gas prices are over double what they were in early 
2021. These rises have, and will continue to impact, on a range of Cumbrian businesses, 
including farmers.  

2.4  Economists are uncertain if inflation is going to peak and then subside as energy costs fall 
back or there are no further rises, or if inflation gets built into wages and so a wage/cost 
spiral ensues and carries on into 2023.  

2.5  The Bank of England (BoE) recently raised its interest rates to 1.0% to respond to inflationary 
pressures. Many forecasters are expecting BoE interest raise to rise to 3% during 2023. 
increasing mortgage costs and so potentially leading to a sharp slowdown in the housing 
market, which is currently overheating. Currently, those with mortgages are used to very 
low interest levels, which if increased, could present significant challenges for borrowers. 

2.6  The increase in costs to households is leading to a sharp squeeze in real incomes as 
earnings, benefits, pensions and so household income are not keeping pace with inflation, 
one of the largest squeezes for the last 50 years and a fall of 3% during 2022. Underlying 
pay growth across the economy is running at 5%, below CPI inflation and the gap is 
expected to widen during the rest of the year. The cost squeeze is particularly acute for 
poorer households, with Cumbria already having above average levels of fuel poverty, 
prior to the recent rises. Cumbria’s rural geography also means that residents and the 
workforce are more dependant on travel, meaning that there is a further squeeze on 
income as people need to travel by car to acess work and services.

2.7  This is likely to lead to shifts in consumer spending away from non-essentials to essentials 
(more on food and energy, less on luxuries). This will impact on the demand for goods and 
services from Cumbria businesses, both for residents, visitors and for firms, which export 
out of the county. The impact on domestic tourism is already being felt and the future is 
uncertain, given that there might be a post COVID fall in staycation spend.  

2

1.  Bank of England, Monetary Policy Report, Monetary Policy Committee, May 2022 

2.  ONS Producer price inflation, UK: March 2022 including services, January to March 2022  
15



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 6

Economic Growth 

2.8  The economy was moving out of the COVID-induced contraction quite rapidly during the 
early part of 2022. By February 2022, it was 1% above pre-pandemic levels. However, the 
events in Ukraine have increased business costs, added to uncertainty, created further 
supply chain issues and added to inflation and so a reduction in real incomes. This had led 
to a slowing down of economic growth. The latest BoE assessment is that GDP growth will 
fall during the rest of 2022 and then flatline most of 2023.  

Latest GDP Growth Forecasts

Source: BoE Monetary Policy Report, May 2022

2.9  Business investment is expected, however, to peak in 2022 as a result of the previous 
announced super capital allowances that have accelerated/brought forward investment. 
This is likely to fall back in 2023 and 2024 as these allowances come to an end.  

Labour market 

2.10  The issues with staff shortages and labour supply remains acute. At a UK level there 
has been a serious contraction in the workforce primarily as workers have withdrawn. 
This is also true in Cumbria. Within the workforce there has been a shift away from self-
employment to becoming employees. So although at a UK level there are 560,000 more 
employees than in March 2020 (+2.0% and in the North West +2.5%), there are nearly 
500,000 fewer people in jobs overall. In Cumbria, current employees as of March 2022 are 
222,400, which is some 1,700 (0.8%) higher than March 2020. 

16



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 7

EU-Exit 

2.11  The Office For Budgetary Responsibility (OBR) produced the Economic and Fiscal Outlook 
in March 2022 for the Spring statement. This reviewed the evidence on the impact of EU 
Exit on trade and the UK economy. Its conclusions were: 

 •  There had been a fall in trade relative to global comparators and competitors 
(imports and exports) that was consistent with increased trade barriers with the 
EU and that the UK therefore appears to have become a less “trade intensive” 
economy. (“Comparing our recent overall trade performance with other 
advanced economies suggests that the UK saw a similar collapse in exports as 
other countries at the start of the pandemic but has since missed out on much of 
the recovery in global trade”). 

 •  UK goods imports from the EU have fallen by more than UK goods exports to the 
EU. In the Q4 2021, goods imports from the EU were down 18 per cent on 2019 
levels, double the 9% fall in goods exports to the EU. The OBR noted that “there 
is little sign to date of UK goods exports to non-EU countries making up for lower 
exports to the EU, with the former down 18% on 2019 levels”. 

2.12  Previous analysis has indicated that the impact in Cumbria has not been markedly 
different than that experienced nationally. The exception to this appears to be those 
parts of the economy that were reliant on EU labour, which are now facing acute labour 
supply issues.

Change in UK labour force since Q4 2019 

17



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 8

 SUPPORTING ECONOMIC RECOVERY

3.1  The current economic challenges mean that supporting economic recovery has and 
will remain an issue throughout 2022/23 and as such CLEP continues to Chair the Business 
and Economic Advisory Group (BEAG), which transitioned from the previous Business and 
Economic Response and Recovery Group (BERRG) of the Local Resilience Forum. 

3.2 BEAG’s responsibilities in supporting recovery, include:

 •  Providing strategic oversight on the implementation of ‘Restart, Reboot, Rethink – 
A Plan for Economic Recovery’ and the underpinning Plans to deliver this. 

 •  Identifying key emerging strategic issues and proposing strategies and suitable 
mechanisms to address these issues. 

 •  Identifying emerging international and national policy, best practice and 
thematic trends, and ensure that these inform CLEP’s activities.  

 •  Monitoring Cumbria’s economic performance and identifying and escalating key 
emerging issues and suggesting potential ideas to help address these.  

 •  Identifying investment opportunities that can support Cumbria’s economic and 
business growth and develop these opportunities. 

 •  Proving response to national consultations, Select Committees, APPGs etc. on 
issues that are relevant to Cumbria’s economy, businesses and people. 

3.3  Meetings of BEAG will take place on a four weekly basis during 2022/23 and will be timed 
to ensure that the intelligence emerging from these meetings is received in sufficient time 
to inform the monthly intelligence reports that CLEP will continue to provide to BEIS.  

3.4  In implementing strategic priorities BEAG will continue to focus on the Rethink elements, 
which are those priorities that are genuinely based in Cumbria’s unique advantages and 
opportunities and are grounded in Government’s policy and investment opportunities. 

3.5  BEAG’s membership has continued to be and will remain extensive, with full membership 
extending to over 70 member organisations. The intention is to ensure that regular 
attendance at each meeting remains strong, in order to demonstrate the added 
value that members believe BEAG brings. It will also continue to operate as a ‘network 
of networks’ bringing together all Business Representative Organisations with business 
leaders, the public and Voluntary and Community Sector alongside Government 
representatives. 

3.6  CLEP’s focus on economic recovery will not be limited to the activities of BEAG with all 
aspects of the governance structure focused on this. 

3

18



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 9

 STRATEGY
4.1   CLEP’s Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) published in March 2019 outlined a vision for 

Cumbria to be “The place to live, work, visit and invest sustainably - where exceptional 
industry and innovation meets a breathtakingly beautiful and productive landscape.” 
This vision was grounded in the reality of Cumbria’s economy, which effectively marries 
together cutting edge advanced manufacturing and clean energy generation with 
exceptional natural capital, which acts as a catalyst for visitors, investors and individuals 
relocating. 

4.2  Cumbria’s strategic imperatives remain unchanged, although the impact of the 
changes to the economic operating environment, means that the focus and relative 
priority of these have changed. During 2022/23 the revised prioritisation of these have 
been amended to reflect the current economic realities as outlined below:

Strategic 
Imperative Impact - Ongoing (April 2022 onwards)

1.  Declining Working 
Age Population

HIGH
Acute labour supply shortages seriously impact on recovery and future growth.

2.  Thin pool of higher 
level skills

HIGH
The level of individuals with higher level skills exiting the labour market reduces 
productivity, performance and impedes recovery and growth. 

3.  Cold spots of 
worklessness and 
deprivation

HIGH 
The cost of living squeeze makes it more difficult for workless individuals to return to the 
labour market.

4.  Increase Business 
Start Ups

MEDIUM 
Trading environment still not strong enough to see significant start up activity.

5.  Increase Faster 
Growing Firms

HIGH 
Economic climate inhibits recovery and growth. 

6.  Increase 
Innovation 
Activity

HIGH 
Inability to find investment finance inhibits innovation and prevents recovery, 
productivity improvements and growth. 

7.   Improved 
Infrastructure

HIGH 
Cost escalation and fragmentation of investment funds inhibits the delivery of major 
infrastructure priorities. 

4

4.3  CLEP’s three strategic touchstones of net zero, productivity and inclusive growth are at 
the heart of every strategy and implementation plans, and will continue to guide our 
activity. 

19



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 10

4.4  In response to the economic challenges presented by the pandemic, CLEP produced 
“Restart, Reboot, Rethink - A Plan for Cumbria’s Economic Recovery.” This was published 
in August 2020 and has been implemented since then. The delivery of the ‘Rethink’ 
themes will remain the priorities in 2022/23 recognising that these are focused on 
Cumbria’s competitive strengths, which align with national policy and investment 
priorities. Therefore, these will be best able to accelerate economic recovery and also 
ensure a higher degree of delivery certainty. 

4.5 The six rethink themes, which will be taken forward are:  

 •   Clean Energy Production – a world-recognised heritage and expertise which provides 
the platform for significant future investment in energy generation. 

 •  Diversify to Thrive – building on the pivoting that has taken place and moving it to the 
next level in terms of localisation of supply chains, movement into new markets and 
extending inward investment. 

 •  The New Visitor Experience – capturing the changes in sustainable visitor behaviour by 
offering a world class experience to a wider range of markets.

 •  The Future of Food – enhancing Cumbria’s crop-based food production to sit alongside 
its existing meat and dairy excellence and supporting food security and resilience.  
Ensuring that a sustainable industry is developed operating sustainable practices.

 •  The UK’s Natural Capital – promoting and exploiting the benefits created by having the 
most protected landscape in percentage of area terms in England. 

 •  The Way We Live, The Way We Work Now – benefitting from the rethink that people are 
making about their lives and the way that they will live and work in the future. 

4.6  During 2022/23, all of these priorities will be moved forward with particular focus on the 
following headline priorities:

Rethink 
Theme Headline Priorities 2022/23 

Timescale

Theme 1  
Clean Energy 

Production

Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production

1.1 Finalise all outstanding issues on STEP at Moorside 
application. 

Quarter 1

1.2 Host awareness raising event in House of Commons. Quarter 1
1.3 Host regional information/advisory event on STEP at 
Moorside.

Quarter 2

1.4 Respond to Ministerial decision. Quarter 3
Clean Energy Strategy

1.5 Produce draft Clean Energy Strategy. Quarter 1
1.6 Consult on Strategy. Quarter 1
1.7 Publish finalised Strategy. Quarter 2
1.8 Implement Strategy. Quarter 2 onwards

20



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 11

Rethink 
Theme Headline Priorities 2022/23 

Timescale
Small Modular Reactors

1.8 Promote Cumbria’s credentials as early adopter for 
siting of Small Modular Reactors and the development 
of supply chain opportunities.

Quarter 1 onwards

1.9 Host House of Lords awareness raising event with 
Rolls Royce.

Quarter 1

1.10 Provide information to support Cumbria’s siting 
credentials.

Ongoing

Theme 2 -  
Diversify to 

Thrive

2.1 Explore diversification opportunities in all business 
support diagnostic activity

Quarter 1 onwards

2.2 Identify and promote supply chain opportunities 
resulting from the rethink themes. 

Quarter 1 onwards

2.3 Develop Cumbria’s innovation activity to identify 
new market opportunities.

Quarter 1 onwards

2.4 Support space ambitions with Space Technologies 
Facility Council

Quarter 1 onwards

2.5 Complete updated analysis of export activity and 
develop a targeted programme to encourage greater 
international trade. 

Quarter 1 onwards

2.6 Refresh inward investment marketing materials to 
promote Cumbria’s investment credentials. 

Quarter 1

2.7 Secure additional Cumbrian sites in DiT Northern 
Powerhouse playbook. 

Quarter 1 onwards

2.8 Relaunch Our Future material to promote Cumbria’s 
a great place to invest. 

Quarter 2 onwards

Theme 3 - 
The New Visitor 

Experience

3.1 Refresh the Visitor Economy Work Programme to 
reflect current market realities. 

Quarter 1 onward

3.2 Implement the Visitor Economy Work Programme Quarter 1 onwards
3.3 Implement the visitor economy aspects of the 
Labour Supply Action Plan

Quarter 1 onwards

Theme 4  
The Future of 

Food

4.1 Work with Scottish Rural University College (SRUC)  to 
support the implementation of the Dairy Chain Strength 
in Places to ensure Cumbria fully benefits.

Quarter 1 onwards

4.2 Finalise the development of the Future of Food 
Action Plan.

Quarter 2

4.3 Ensure that support for the farming community is 
integrated into future business support offers.

Quarter 1 onwards

4.4 Appoint a lead consultant to refresh the work 
programme and lead the implementation of this.

Quarter 2

4.5 Implement the refreshed work programme. Quarter 2 onwards

Theme 5 -  
The UK’s 
Natural 
Capital

5.1 Develop the economic quantification case for 
natural capital in Cumbria.

Quarter 2

5.2 Identify opportunities to secure economic benefits 
from natural capital

Quarter 2 onwards

5.3 Develop business cases to commercialise natural 
capital

Quarter 3 onwards

21



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 12

Rethink 
Theme Headline Priorities 2022/23 

Timescale
Theme 6 

 - The Way We 
Live, The Way 
We Work Now

6.1 Refresh the Our Future campaign to promote 
Cumbria as a great place to live work and invest.

Quarter 2

6.2 Re-launch the refreshed Our Future materials. Quarter 2 onwards

4.7   The priorities outlined within the Plan for Growth and the Levelling up White Paper will also 
be integrated into strategic planning and implementation. In relation to the 12 Levelling 
Up Missions, CLEP will have a particular focus on the following missions, which are felt to 
most strongly align with our role and responsibilities:

 •  Mission 1 - By 2030, pay, employment and productivity will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with each containing a globally competitive city, with the gap 
between the top performing and other areas closing.  

 •  Mission 2 - By 2030, domestic public investment in R&D outside the Greater 
Southeast will increase by at least 40% and at least one third over the Spending 
Review period, with that additional Government funding seeking to leverage at 
least twice as much private sector investment over the long term to stimulate 
innovation and productivity growth.  

 •  Mission 6 - By 2030, the number of people successfully completing high-quality 
skills training will have significantly increased in every area of the UK. In England, 
this will lead to 200,000 more people successfully completing high-quality skills 
training annually, driven by 80,000 more people completing courses in the lowest 
skilled areas. 

4.8  CLEP will also play a highly supportive role in working with partners on the delivery of 
a range of missions. The scale and intensity of this support will be mission specific, with 
for example Mission 3 being a significant priority, given CLEP’s joint production of the 
Cumbria Transport and Infrastructure Plan with colleagues in Cumbria County Council, 
as the statutory transport authority. The missions where CLEP will look to make both a 
strategic and delivery contribution are:  

 •  Mission 3 - By 2030, local public transport connectivity across the country will be 
significantly closer to the standards of London, with improved services, simpler 
fares and integrated ticketing.  

 •  Mission 4 - By 2030, the UK will have nationwide gigabit-capable broadband and 
4G coverage, with 5G coverage for the majority of the population. 

 •  Mission 7 - By 2030, the gap in Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) between local areas 
where it is highest and lowest will have narrowed, and by 2035 HLE will rise by 5 
years.

 •  Mission 8 - By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing.

 •  Mission 9 - By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town 
centre and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas closing. 

22



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 13

4.9  Clearly, Mission 12 - By 2030, every part of England that wants one will have a devolution 
deal with powers at or approaching the highest level of devolution and a simplified, 
long-term funding settlement, will be led by Local Authority colleagues in the new 
Cumberland, and Westmorland and Furness Local Authorities once they become 
operational on 1 April 2023. However, CLEP stands ready to provide whatever assistance 
it can to support this. 

4.10  Economic intelligence remains a key strategic priority and going forward CLEP will 
continue to produce Economic Updates, with these provided every two months by 
CLEP’s economist. In 2022/23 these reports will also look to provide an economic 
overview for the two shadow authority geographies in order to support their economic 
planning. 

4.11   In the last two years, CLEP has focused on developing its underpinning strategies 
producing the Creative and Cultural Strategy; Digital Strategy; Housing Delivery Strategy; 
Internationalisation Strategy; Employment Sites and Premises Strategy and the Nuclear 
Prospectus, and towards the end of 2021/22 the Cumbria Transport and Infrastructure 
Plan (CTIP) with colleagues in Cumbria County Council. The requirement to draft further 
strategy documents has diminished with the focus very much on delivery of these 
agreed strategies and ensuring that the priorities within these are achieved.  

4.12 Therefore, the focus will be on finalising and publishing the following:

 •  Clean Energy Strategy – will be produced to complement the Nuclear Prospectus, 
focusing on all generation technologies. This will set out the future opportunities 
nationally and in Cumbria and the role that Cumbria can play in supporting 
clean energy generation, building on its existing role as a net contributor to the 
electricity grid and supporting the delivery of Net Zero Carbon. This will be drafted 
in Quarter 1 and published in Quarter 2.

 •  Business Decarbonisation 10 Point Plan – alongside Clean Energy Generation, 
Cumbria’s twin priority is to support the achievement of Net Zero by supporting the 
business base to decarbonise. CLEP will therefore formally launch its 10 Point Plan 
in Quarter 1 at a high profile event, with implementation ongoing.  

 •  Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP) – finalising Cumbria’s case for STEP 
at Moorside, prior to UKAEA submitting its recommendations to BEIS Ministers. 

4.13  Whilst the family of strategic documentation will be fundamentally in place there will 
remain a strong focus on updating all of the work programmes for both the Sector Panels 
and the Strategy Groups. 

4.14  There are other really important strategic priorities that will be taken forward in 2022/23, 
including:

 •  Labour Supply Action Plan – continually refreshing, updating and implementing 
this plan to help address Cumbria’s acute labour supply challenges. 

 •  Productivity Deep Dive – taking forward the findings of this work and developing 
plans to address Cumbria’s productivity under performance.  

 •  Innovation – taking forward the work completed with EPSRC and ensuring that this 
helps address productivity and labour supply challenges. 

23



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 14

 GOVERNANCE 
5.1   CLEP continues to keep its governance arrangements under constant review, in line with 

its commitment to operating to the highest standards of propriety, transparency and 
accountability. Importantly, the arrangements seek to ensure that private, public and 
voluntary and community sector partners are actively engaged in the development and 
implementation of strategies and plans, with the structure engaging hundreds of partners 
in this.

5.2   CLEP has continued to make sure that it is inclusive, action-focused, aligned to 
Cumbria’s strategic priorities and reflects Cumbria’s economic priorities. Each part of the 
structure has specific responsibilities and Terms of References to avoid duplication and 
overlap. The changes to governance introduced in 2019 have stood the test of time and 
as such locally only a minor change has been made to the title of the Kingmoor Park 
Enterprise Zone Delivery Board reflecting the end of the Enterprise Zone Programme. 

5.3  However, the structure below has been updated to reflect Government’s decision to 
close down the local ESIF Committee’s due to the European Programmes moving into 
the closure phase. 

5

CLEP BOARD

Sector Panels

Strategy Groups

Delivery

Scrutiny Function

Ideas and 
Innovation

People, 
Employment 

and Skills

Transport and 
Infrastructure

Business

Places

Rural
Visitor

Economy

Clean 
Energy

Advanced 
Manufacturing

Construction Logistics

Professional
Services

 Creative 
and Cultural

Investment
Panel

Kingmoor Park 
Strategic Partners 

Group

Local Enterprise 
Partnership Scrutiny 

Board

Business and 
Economy 

Advisory Group

Futures 
Forum

 5.4   Most bodies are advisory with the only formal decision making bodies being the Board, 
Investment Panel and the Kingmoor Park Strategic Partners Group. 

24



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 15

Decision Making Groups 

5.5  The Board is the main decision body, with all governance bodies ultimately reporting to it. 

5.6  The Investment Panel is responsible for overseeing and developing the pipeline of 
investment opportunities and ensuring that all due diligence in relation to publicly funded 
investments are met. 

5.7  The Kingmoor Park Strategic Partners Group will address the residual responsibilities of 
Enterprise Zone status. 

Advisory Groups 

5.8  The Strategy Groups and Sector Panels operate on a supply and demand basis, with the 
Strategy Groups representing the supply side and the Sector Panels the demand side. 
For example, the Sector Panels will outline their skills needs with the People, Employment 
and Skills Strategy Group identifying how this need can be met; or transport infrastructure 
issues being addressed by the Transport and Infrastructure Strategy Group. 

5.9  The Futures Forum is an important part of the governance structure, ensuring that 18-35 
year olds influence CLEP’s decisions and activity – ensuring that our future generations 
have a genuine stake in Cumbria’s economy. 

5.10  The LEP Scrutiny Board fulfils an essential function with elected members from the 
seven Local Authorities in Cumbria independently scrutinising the LEP’s strategic and 
operational activity. This body actively demonstrates CLEP’s commitment to the highest 
standards of transparency and accountability. CLEP will work with the two new Shadow 
Authorities to develop succession scrutiny arrangements.

5.11  The Business and Economy Advisory Group replaced the Business and Economic 
Response and Recovery Group (BERRG), once the later was formally stood down, with 
the standing membership transferring seamlessly from one to another. 

5.12   In addition to its external facing governance, CLEP also has an important internal 
governance body, its Finance, Audit and Resource Committee, which reports directly to 
the Board. Reports from FARC are a standing item on every Board agenda.

Diversity and Inclusion 

5.13   All LEPs had a target to achieve at least a third female Board membership by 2020 
and equal representation by January 2023. The first milestone was achieved a year 
ahead of schedule. A targeted recruitment campaign will be completed in Quarter 1 
of 2022/23 to secure additional female membership in advance of the target deadline. 
CLEP is committed to making equally strong progress on broader diversity issues and in 
encouraging representation from under-represented groups and people with protected 
characteristics, to ensure that CLEP is fully representative of the communities which it 
serves. The Futures Forum, consisting of members ages 18 - 35 year olds, remains a critical 
conduit to Cumbria’s younger people.

25



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 16

Governance Review 

5.14   The Board deferred its planned review of the Governance structure whilst awaiting 
the outcome of the LEP Review. This will therefore be completed in Quarter 1 and 2 of 
2022/23 with the Board committed to ensuring that this remains fit for purpose and form 
follows function. This is likely to result in some streamlining and changes to the Strategy 
Groups to better reflect current priorities. 

5.15   Irrespective of this fundamental review, some changes will need to take place including 
developing revised Terms of Reference for the Investment Panel, once there is greater 
clarity on the expectations of the revised Local Assurance Framework.  

5.16  CLEP continues to meet all performance requirements in its assessment by Government, 
with the 2021/22 assessment confirming that CLEP was ‘met’ for governance, strategy 
and delivery. Met is the best marking available under the current system. 

Board Membership and Development

5.17  During 2021/22 three private sector Board members’ appointments concluded with the 
recruitment to replace these due to be completed in Quarter 1 of 2022/23. Additionally, the 
nuclear representative Dr Rebecca Weston confirmed that she would be stepping down to 
take up a new appointment and a new representative will be sought from the sector. 

5.18  The Board has agreed that the Board will reduce from 20 to 16 members during 2023 to 
reflect the changes in the Local Authority landscape with the public sector membership 
reducing from 6 to 4 members going forward. A compensating  reduction of 2 private 
sector members will also take place once two terms of office conclude during the year. 
Additionally, the shadow Leaders of the new shadow Local Authorities have been invited 
to join the Board in observer capacity until formally taking up their positions on 1 April 2023. 

LEP THEME PRIORITY BOARD 
THEME TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Strategy Hold a Strategy 
Development 
Day following the 
outcome of the LEP 
Review 

Strategic 
Development

May 2022 Board consider the key 
strategic issues that need to 
form the work programme 
going forward.

Develop an updated 
economic strategy 
synthesising the 
content of the Local 
Industrial Strategy 
and Restart, Reboot, 
Rethink 

July 2022 The strategy reflects the Plan 
for Growth and the impacts 
of both COVID-19, EU Exit and 
the findings from the revised 
evidence base. The strategic 
touchstones, crosscutting 
themes and rethink themes 
are delivered. 

Produce a revised 
Local Skills Plan  

January 
2022

The Plan reflects the 
significant changes in the 
labour market and the skills 
implications of this.

Produce a Clean 
Energy Strategy

June 2022 Individual generation 
technology plans are 
synthesised into a single 
document, which also 
articulates the vision and 
ambition.

Restart, Reboot, 
Rethink

26



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 17

LEP THEME PRIORITY BOARD 
THEME TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Introduce strategy 
lunches to explore 
key strategic issues in 
a less formal setting

2022/2023 
Financial 
Year

Board members have the 
time and space to consider 
key strategic opportunities 
and challenges. 

Strategy Ensure that Board 
agendas allow 
sufficient time to 
discuss strategic 
rather than 
operational issues

Strategic 
Development

January 
2022 
onwards

Board collectively focuses the 
balance of time on strategic 
priorities. 

Ensure that all 
Sector Panel and 
Strategy Boards work 
programmes are 
updated.

Ongoing All governance bodies are 
focused on the issues that 
will provide greatest impact 
on recovery and growth for 
Cumbria’s economy and 
businesses. 

Governance Introduce a 
new Business 
Decarbonisation 
Leadership Group 
to complement the 
Clean Energy Sector 
Panel.

Net Zero July 2022 Equal focus on 
decarbonisation agenda 
alongside clean energy 
generation agenda.

Revise the CLEP 
governance structure 
to reflect CLEP’s 
priorities post-LEP 
Review.

Effective Board 
Deployment

July 2022 Governance structure 
remains fit for purpose.

Agree revised 
portfolios for Board 
members.  

July 2022 in line with the new 
governance structure.

Ensure that public 
sector partners are 
equally engaged 
in strategy and 
governance issues.

Inclusive Board Ongoing All members fully and actively 
contribute to CLEP’s agenda. 

Review and Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion 
Policy 

Diversity January 
2022

Policy keeps pace with best 
in class. 

Ensure that the 
governance structure 
is diverse and 
inclusive

Ongoing The structure fully reflects 
the businesses, citizens and 
communities that we serve. 

Delivery Review the Executive 
structure post-LEP 
Review

Capacity and 
Capability

March 2022 The structure remains fit for 
purpose post LEP-Review.

Identify mechanisms 
to secure additional 
Executive resource – 
secondees, additional 
funding etc. 

Ongoing CLEP can further extend its 
activity and reach.

Ensure that going 
concern status 
continues to be met

Compliance Ongoing CLEP can continue to trade 
effectively.

27



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 18

5.18  The Deputy Chair has been leading a Board Development Programme, which resulted 
in the production of the Action Plan below, which will be implemented on an ongoing 
basis. 

5.19  Additionally, all Board portfolios will be reviewed and refreshed as appropriate. 

Annual General Meeting 

5.20  CLEP remains committed to securing strong attendance at its Annual General Meeting, 
which will take place in September 2022. The Annual Report for 2022 will be produced in 
electronic format, to avoid unnecessary printing. This approach will also ensure that the 
Annual Report is interactive and can be regularly updated.

CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 1828



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 19

  DEVELOPMENT OF STAFF AND  
CAPABILITIES OF CLEP 

6.1   At the outset of the 2022/23 financial year the Board agreed that the Executive structure 
should be maintained and rolled forward into 2022/23 until greater clarity on delivery 
requirements was available. This decision was made on the basis that additional posts 
would only be filled on an exceptional basis. The structure of the team reflects the shift 
in CLEP’s responsibility and the move to the delivery of revenue as opposed to capital 
programmes, given that LEPs will not have a formal role in the Shared Prosperity or 
Levelling Up Funds. 

6.2  CLEP’s structure continues to reflect the three priority themes – strategy, governance and 
delivery and is therefore perceived to be fit for purpose in terms of current and medium 
term priorities. It has also been designed to deliver on the current work programme. The 
current structure is outlined below:

6

Chief Executive
Jo Lappin

Head of 
Programmes

Jon Power

Head of 
Sector 

Ian Wheeler

Executive 
Assistant 

Jen Hewitt

Head of Infrastructure
and Programme 

Closure

David Hughes

Careers Hub 
Manager*

Cath Dutton

P/T Enterprise 
Coordinator

Mel Carr

Business Support 
Adviser•

Gavin Glennon

Communications 
Assistant*

Ebony Ritchie

Enterprise 
Coordinator

Jo Tate

P/T  SEND 
Adviser*

Katherine Jane

P/T Enterprise 
Coordinator

To be Appointed

Internationalisation
Manager*

John Cairns

Business Growth
Manager

Lynsey Parke

Skills Bootcamp  
Programme 
Manager*

Amanda Wharton

Clean Energy 
Manager*
Brian White

P/T Transport 
Manager

Andy Harper

Seconded Staff – Paid for by CLEP

Seconded Staff - Fully Funded 

Direct CLEP Employees 
* denotes Fixed Term

29



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 20

6.3  It will be necessary to recruit additional business support resource to help deliver the 
Towns Deal business support project and to replace the vacant Enterprise Adviser post. 
However, beyond this the intention is to cover other priorities via consultancy, secondee 
or temporary resource to provide greater flexibility. Going forward, a number of CLEP’s 
communication campaigns will be led by consultants and a range of other functions 
including economics support, policy support, accountancy, design and legal advice 
provided by call off consultants. 

6.4  CLEP will also continue to explore opportunities to secure additional high quality 
secondee resource from BAE to augment the 2.2 senior level posts supported by NDA/
Sellafield Ltd. 

6.5  The LEP Review has inevitably created uncertainty within the team and as such there will 
be a heightened focus on learning and development in 2022/23 to ensure that all team 
members are equipped with the highest level of employability, recognising that this will 
ensure that the team is well equipped to manage change and uncertainty.  

6.6   CLEP will continue with its hybrid working arrangements throughout 2022/23. However, 
there will be increased office based working and importantly more face to face 
meetings with external partners, with the level of these significantly stepping up in 
2021/22, which was very much welcomed. CLEP will continue to ensure that these 
working arrangements operate in the interest of Cumbria’s economy and businesses and 
enable us to deliver in the most effective way possible. 

6.7  During 2022/23, CLEP will produce its third set of audited accounts with these being 
presented to the CLEP Board meeting taking place on 22 July 2022, prior to formal 
adoption at the Annual General Meeting in September.  CLEP will continue to ensure 
that its systems and processes receive a clean bill of health at audit.

6.8  Alongside the independent audit of the company accounts, all of CLEP’s programmes 
will be audited in line with the requirements of the relevant Grant Offer letter. 

CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 2030



 MULTI-LEP AND WORKING OUTSIDE CUMBRIA 
Partnership working outside of Cumbria 

7.1  CLEP continues to work effectively in partnership outside of our boundaries, including: 

 •   The LEP Network - CLEP is an active member and has led and contributed to several 
of the LEP Network’s submissions to Government, to Select Committees and other 
consultations. The Chief Executive is leading one of the 5 LEP Review Working Groups 
and is a member of the Group working with officials on the outcomes of the LEP 
Review.  

 •   Northern Powerhouse 11 (NP11) – working collaboratively with the other 10 LEPs within 
the NP11 on the work programme that has been developed. 

 •   Borderland Inclusive Growth Deal – CLEP is a committed partner to this initiative 
working with colleagues in Carlisle City Council, Cumbria County Council, Dumfries 
and Galloway Council, Northumberland Council and Scottish Borders Council. The 
CLEP Chair and a CLEP Board member are representatives on the Economic Forum 
with CLEP actively engaging in the energy work and other initiatives. 

 •   North West Region – the 5 LEPs across the North West come together in a variety 
of settings to work collaboratively on issues of common interest including Net Zero, 
including NZNW, Clean Energy Generation; and promoting the interests of the region. 
All 5 LEPs work together on the implementation of the work programme for the North 
West Net Zero Hub. 

 •   Lancashire LEP – working together on cross-boundary issues and on sharing best 
practice. 

Partnership working within Cumbria 

Engaging with the business community 

7.2   The business sector engagement takes place 
through several channels: 

 •   CLEP’s business support services – which 
provide direct advice and support to the 
SME community through business assists 
and workshops. 

 •   Our formal governance structures has 
a very strong business representation. 
We have eight Sector Panels 
covering the rural economy (largely 
responsible for Agri-food), the visitor 
economy, the creative & cultural 
sector, clean energy, advanced 
manufacturing, construction, 
logistics, and professional services. 
At least 150 businesses are members 
of these Sector Panels, which meet 
every 2 to 3 months. Businesses are 
also represented on the LEP’s other key 
governance sub-committees (five Strategy 
Groups).

7

CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 2131



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 22

 •   The LEP holds an Annual General Meeting, which this year takes place in September 
2022. The 2021 AGM was very well attended by representatives from the private, 
public, voluntary and community sector partners. 

 •   Key Account Management – meeting with a cohort of foreign owned businesses to 
support their ongoing engagement and investment in Cumbria. 

7.3  In addition, CLEP staff attend, present and answer questions at a wide range of 
business networking events and business clubs on an ad hoc basis. These are currently 
predominantly through video conferencing but are increasingly moving to face to face 
meetings.  

Engaging with wider public, voluntary and community-based bodies 

7.4  The wider public, voluntary and community-based bodies also are represented across 
CLEP’s governance structure and sit on different Sector Panels and Strategy Groups. In 
addition the LEP engages with the public sector via: 

 •  Membership of all Towns Deal Boards including CLEP Board members Chairing three of 
these.

 • Membership of all relevant Local Resilience Forum bodies, when operating.

  • Membership of Cumbria’s Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership. 

7.5  As with the business sector, LEP staff attend, present and answer questions at a wide 
range of networking events and conferences on an ad hoc basis. This include the 
Cumbria CVS. There is a Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) nominee on 
the CLEP Board and membership throughout the wider governance structure.

Engaging with the skills system

7.6  CLEP has highly effective relationships with the skills system, through both HE and FE 
representation on the Board and through its People, Employment and Skills Strategy 
Group.  The latter brings together a wide range of education and skills providers to 
ensure that the system is responsive to the needs of the business community as identified 
by CLEP’s extensive governance arrangement. 

32



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 23

8
  PROGRAMME ACTIVITY

Capital Programmes

Getting Building Fund
8.1  CLEP allocated in full its £10.5 million from the Getting Building Fund in line with the 

timetable set out by Government.  The focus is therefore on ensuring the practical 
completion of the two funded projects - the A595 Bothel scheme, which received 
£5.0million of funding and the Barrow Marina Village Scheme that received £5.5 million of 
funding. 

8.2  The Marina Village project is expected to be completed by December 2022. Progress will 
be closely monitored to ensure delivery timelines are met. CLEP will be working with all 
partners, including Homes England, regarding support for the ongoing development of 
the site. 

8.3  The A595 Bothel investment is focused on the reconstruction of the Greyhound/
Torpenhow Junction. The project currently has a practical completion date of December 
2022 and close monitoring will take place to ensure that this is achieved. 

8.4  CLEP will continue to press for a DfT decision on the wider A595 Bothel Strategic 
Improvements. 

Local Growth Fund/Growth Deal  
8.5  The Growth Deal Programme is financially complete, with all projects receiving payment 

in advance of Government’s 31 March 2021 deadline. There are only five projects that 
are subject to practical completion, following the completion of the Carlisle Citadels and 
Kendal Business Hub projects. The latter of which is currently reconciling final evidence of 
defrayal. 

8.6  The post-closure focus is therefore on ensuring that all aspects of practical completion on 
these projects is concluded and the following issues addressed: 

 •  Lillyhall North - resolving some slippage and ensuring that the project outcomes are 
delivered in line with the Grant Funding Agreement. The contract will be revised to 
reflect recent Change Control agreements. 

 •  A595 Grizebeck – progressing the amendments to the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU) and monitoring progress against the commitments made in the Change Control 
to ensure that this is delivered to schedule. 

 •  Optimising Connectivity 2: Phase 2 - Southern Windermere - monitoring progress 
against the commitments made in the Change Control and ensuring that the project is 
delivering to the revised schedule. Amending the Grant Funding Agreement to reflect 
the Change Control. 

33



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 24

 •  Low Carbon Barrow – monitoring progress against the commitments made in the 
Change Control and finalising amendments to the Grant Funding Agreement. 

 •  Cross-A-Moor – amendments to the Memorandum of Understanding and preparation 
for opening of the scheme. 

8.7  Confirmation of defrayed expenditure will continue to be monitored to ensure that the 
£3,904,155 is fully evidenced. The Quarter 1 position was as outlined below:  

Project Title Project 
Applicant

Grant Award Grant 
Evidenced to 
Date

Claims being 
Processing

Remaining 
Grant to be 
Evidenced

Optimising 
Connectivity 
2: Southern 
Windermere

Lake District 
National Park 
Authority

£444,694 £14,869 £0 £429,825

Carlisle 
Citadels

Carlisle City 
Council

£1,782,000 £1,557,760  £215,486  £8,754

Kendal 
Business Hub

South 
Lakeland 
District Council

£439,522 £378,586  £60,936  £0

Low Carbon 
Barrow

Barrow 
Borough 
Council

£750,000 £0 £112,610  £637,390 

Grizebeck Cumbria 
County 
Council

£2,244,000 £388,390 £320,870  £1,534,740 

Lillyhall North 
Revised

Allerdale 
Borough 
Council

£1,789,761 £438,091  £58,224  £1,293,446 

Cross-A-Moor South 
Lakeland 
District Council

£925,000 £0 £925,000 £0

GROWTH DEAL TOTALS £8,374,977 £2,777,696  £1,693,126  £3,904,155

8.8  During the post-closure period the main focus will be on ensuring that all programme 
outputs are achieved and during the first half of the 2022/23 financial year a full review 
will be completed to assess risk. The Quarter 1 position is as outlined below: 

34



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 25

Programme 
Outputs

Jobs 
Created

Jobs 
Safeguarded

Investment 
(Public 
& Private 
Match / 
Follow-on 
Investment)

Learning 
Opportunities

Housing Sq. Metres 
Premises 
(Created / 
Refurbished)

Premises 
with access 
to superfast 
broadband

Output Target 4,000 £100,000,000 1,700 3,000 62,000 5,000

Allocations/ 
Commitments

5,179 1,493 £121,303,618 5,207 4,162 210,873 11,220

6,672

Forecast 3,658 1,493 £144,122,918 7,238 2,395 221,311 11,243

5,151

Achieved 687 1,488 £87,617,921 4,925 899 118,639 11,223

2,175

Achieved (% 
of BEIS Target)

54.4% 87.6% 290% 30% 191.4% 224.5%

Remaining 
Target

1,825 £12,382,079 EXCEEDED 2,101 EXCEEDED EXCEEDED

Community Infrastructure Fund 
8.9  CLEP has developed a proposal to re-purpose the Community Infrastructure Fund for 

two purposes – to convert the loan element into a grant scheme and to use the revenue 
stream to support CLEP’s wider activity. This proposal has been agreed by CLEP’s Board 
and discussions are taking place with the Accountable Body regarding the practicalities 
of releasing the funds for these purposes. 

Revenue Programmes

Growth Hub Business Support Programme
8.10  CLEP has received a letter of comfort for £231,000 to deliver the BEIS Growth Hub 

programme. This is only 50% of the 2021/22 programme and as such the delivery model 
will move from a combination of in-house and outsourced delivery to one that is 
exclusively delivered in house. The service will include the triage service, medium and 
high intensity assists, workshops and marketing and communications as well as managing 
the Business Hub website.  

35



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 26

8.11  The services provided will be delivered in an impartial and collaborative manner. CLEP’s 
leadership of the local business support agenda has meant that excellent relationships 
are in place with a range of business support and representative organisations, with CLEP 
well versed in the range of quality business support provision available in Cumbria and 
will seek to refer businesses to the support, which provides the best fit for their individual 
business needs. The service will provide a free at the point of entry assessment of 
businesses support requirements.  

8.12   Where The Business Hub services can support immediately, this will be offered regardless 
of sector or size.  After this initial assessment, a client will be either referred to other 
provision elsewhere or if appropriate, provided with further high intensity support in-
house. CLEP will continue with its freephone number to ensure that calls to the Business 
Hub are free at the point of entry. 

8.13  The delivery targets are still to be agreed with BEIS. However, it is expected that these will 
be roughly 50% of the 2021/22, given that the funding has been halved. 

Peer to Peer
8.14  CLEP successfully delivered 17 cohorts through this £255,000 contract. These were 

delivered via seven delivery partners, both generalist and specialist with all cohorts 
having high satisfaction level at 91%. 

8.15  BEIS decided to cease the funding for this national programme and as such the 
Programme has concluded. This decision was not related to quality, as it was recognised 
as being of high quality and was well regarded by the businesses that participated in 
this. CLEP has therefore submitted an application to the Shared Prosperity Fund to see if 
this can be incorporated into CLEP’s mainstream business support programme. 

Skills Bootcamps
8.16  DfE is running two parallel processes for Wave 3 of Skills Bootcamps, aiming to achieve a 

balance between grant funding to local areas and national/sectoral procurement. LEPs 
were invited to co-ordinate the local process in their areas. A draft grant offer letter has 
been received from DfE and the expectation is that contract delivery will commence in 
Quarter 2. 

8.17  The Programme will focus on intensive, Level 3-5 or equivalent flexible training 
courses delivered over up to 16 weeks with a minimum of 60 Guided Learning Hours. 
It should equip adults with technical skills that enable them to access in-demand 
jobs, apprenticeships, new opportunities and an increased level of income over time 
(including for the self-employed). Each applicant not in work should be guaranteed a 
job interview. 

8.18  It is open to all adults aged 19 or over on 31 August within the 2022 to 2023 funding year, 
who are full-time or part-time employed, self-employed, unemployed (i.e. not in work), 
as well as adults returning to work after a break. Skills Bootcamps will also be open to 
serving prisoners due to be released within 6 months of completion of a Skills Bootcamp 
and those on Temporary Release.  

8.19  The Bootcamps will be co-funded at 30% by the employer where the employer is training 
their own existing employees. This is reduced to 10% where the employer is a Small or 
Medium Enterprise (SME) training their own existing employees. Courses are fully funded 
by Government for individuals not being co-funded by their employer, and for the self-
employed. There must be no charges to the individual learner.

36



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 27

8.20  CLEP has identified the necessary resource to deliver this important programme, which 
will help to address skills shortages in Cumbria.  

Careers and Enterprise Programme
8.21  The Careers and Enterprise Programme is funded on an academic year basis and as 

such the delivery period continues until 31 August 2022. It consists of two distinct elements 
– Programme and Management – with the programme budget being directly expended 
on delivery activity and the management funding supporting CLEP’s in-house delivery 
team. In terms of the management funding this meets 100% of the costs of the Careers 
Hub Manager and 50% of the 3 Enterprise Co-Ordinator Full Time Equivalent posts. The 
Careers and Enterprise Company has issued its offer letter for the 2022/23 academic 
year, with CLEP confirming its acceptance of this, following Board approval to guarantee 
match funding until the end of August 2023. 

8.22  The focus of delivery will be the implementation of the Careers Hub Strategic Plan at 
Annex A. The Strategic Plan will be updated for the 2022/23 academic year.

Skills Advisory Panel 
8.23  CLEP will receive £55,000 of funding in 2022/23 with this to be focused on producing and 

sharing robust analysis of the local labour market to support the development of the 
Local Skills Improvement Plan (LSIP) by the designated Employer Representative Body 
(ERB). This funding is expected to be confirmed during Quarter 1.   

DIT Key Account Management
8.24  The Department of International Trade is currently reviewing its delivery model and as 

such has offered a six month contract to Northern LEPs, with the budget proportioned, 
accordingly. The KAM post has been extended through until end of September 2022 and 
the outputs for this period agreed with DiT. 

8.25  CLEP recognises the importance of this work and as such is considering if and how to 
maintain this activity, should funding cease. 

 

CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 2737



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 28

CUMBRIA CAREERS HUB STRATEGIC PLAN 2021/2022

Scope and Purpose of the Strategy 

Through statutory guidance and the Skills for Jobs White Paper (2021), The Careers & Enterprise 
Company (CEC) is the main Government partner for supporting schools and colleges to deliver 
careers education in England.

The DfE’s National Careers Strategy identified eight benchmarks that define excellence. These 
benchmarks have been developed by the Gatsby Charitable Foundation and are based on a 
range of national and international research into careers provision.  These benchmarks are:

1. A stable careers programme

2. Learning from career and labour market information

3. Addressing the needs of each student

4. Linking curriculum learning to careers

5. Encounters with employers and employees

6. Experiences of workplaces

7. Encounters with further and higher education

8. Personal guidance

In 2021 the CEC updated and shared their vision with Career Hubs across England to adapt 
and deliver locally.

The CEC strategic plan sets out to address the following issues:

• A best next step is not the same for every young person

• Young people face uncertainty and opportunity – now more than ever

• Difficulties are not evenly spread

The Cumbria Careers Hub’s strategic plan also sets out to address the following local issues:

•  Careers Education isn’t always seen as a priority in schools and colleges and insufficient 
resources (time and money) are allocated to delivering an outstanding careers 
education programme

•  All young people in Cumbria are not aware of the career and job opportunities 
available to them in the County

•  Employers (especially SMEs) are unsure of how to engage with schools and colleges to 
support careers education 

•  Most SMEs do not (or believe they don’t) have the time and resources to support careers 
education on a regular basis

ANNEX A

38



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 29

THE VISION
TO HELP EVERY YOUNG PERSON FIND THEIR BEST NEXT STEP

Our Strategic Objectives are:

•  To support all schools, special schools and colleges to deliver an impactful careers 
education

•  To support all employers including SMEs to engage with schools, special schools and 
colleges in a meaningful way

•  To inspire young people in Cumbria about the real career and job opportunities through 
up-to-date labour market information

Priority Actions

TO SUPPORT ALL SCHOOLS, SPECIAL SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES 
TO DELIVER AN IMPACTFUL CAREERS EDUCATION

•  To recruit all schools and special schools into the Hub to enable them to gain access 
to both an Enterprise Coordinator and Enterprise Advisor to drive up attainment of the 
Gatsby Benchmarks

•  To recruit an Enterprise Coordinator to support special schools to deliver a meaningful 
careers education

•  To create the Careers Hub website which will provide a one stop shop for educational 
institutions to access

•  To elevate the status of careers education in institutions by working with Governors 
and Senior Leaders to ensure careers education features prominently in their institution 
strategic plans and appropriate resources are allocated to careers education

•  To develop teaching resources that will help deliver careers education in schools and 
colleges

•  To prioritise achievement of Benchmark 1 (a stable careers programme) ensuring tailored 
support is provided to institutions failing to achieve this Benchmark

•  To work with Career Leaders, who are achieving 100% against some or all of the Gatsby 
Benchmarks and develop a peer network and shared learning culture through the use of 
Best Practice Case Studies and CPD sessions.

•  To build a relationship with One Cumbria Education to identify ways in which we can 
ensure careers education is integrated longer term into “general” teacher training and 
development for all teachers and support staff encouraging systemic change from the 
start

39



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 30

•  To develop an induction resource for teaching and support staff that can be utilised in 
all schools and colleges to raise awareness of the importance of careers education and 
how they can support it in their own role.

TO SUPPORT ALL EMPLOYERS INCLUDING SMES TO ENGAGE WITH 
SCHOOLS, SPECIAL SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES IN A MEANINGFUL WAY

•  To support and develop the existing Enterprise Advisor network to ensure they have the 
tools and knowledge to undertake their role with their matched school or college

•  To refresh and refocus the Cornerstone Employer Group by agreeing and delivering 
a meaningful Cornerstone Strategy, recruiting employers to fully represent Cumbria’s 
economy

•  To develop the Careers Hub website to provide a one stop shop of information and 
resources to support employers in better engaging with education

•  To work with the CLEP Sector Panels and businesses as a whole to understand emerging 
and current skills need and ensure Career Leaders and young people are given 
appropriate labour market information

•  To recruit Enterprise Advisors to work with new hub members

•  To work with employers to raise awareness of inclusivity enabling young people from 
special schools equal opportunities to work experience, employer encounters and 
careers

•  To support employers to develop digital resources where possible providing for a longer 
term sustainable careers education that will link to the curriculum

•  To amplify vocational and technical routes specifically apprenticeships and T levels by 
working with employers/employees to develop case studies that can be shared with 
young people and parents/guardians

•  To investigate establishing a young people (18-30) Career Ambassador scheme to 
engage with the Our Future campaign and share their career stories with schools and 
colleges.

•  To measure the impact of employer encounters in schools and continue to review and 
develop to ensure it is meaningful.

40



CLEP DELIVERY PLAN 2022/23  • 31

TO INSPIRE YOUNG PEOPLE IN CUMBRIA ABOUT THE REAL CAREER 
AND JOB OPPORTUNITIES THROUGH UP-TO-DATE LABOUR MARKET 

INFORMATION

•  To raise aspirations and employability skills of all young people in Cumbria by:

 •  Providing up-to-date inspirational labour market information through education in 
schools 

 •  Supporting the delivery of the reinvigorated Our Future campaign

 •  Supporting the delivery of enterprise activity in education

 •  To fully understand the definition of disadvantaged in relation to young people 
in Cumbria and the challenges and barriers they face to accessing careers 
education, employer encounters, further and higher education 

 •  To support disadvantaged young people by ensuring they are given equal access 
to employer encounters and general career education

How will we measure success?

Careers Education is delivered from year 7 to year 13 in educational institutions so some impact 
measures can only be assessed longer term. 

The Careers Hub has targets set by the CEC and DfE.  These include: 

•  Progress in the achievement of the Gatsby Benchmarks in all schools, special schools and 
colleges in the Hub specifically 

 •  Benchmark 1 (A stable careers programme) 80%

 •  Benchmark 5 (Encounters with employers and employees) Clear evidence of 
progress

 •  Benchmark 6 (Young people will gain experiences of work) Clear evidence of 
progress

•  Number or Enterprise Advisors matched with Hub Institution members 100%

•  Stakeholder satisfaction minimum 70%

The overall success of this strategy will be measured by assessing progress against the priority 
actions identified in this strategy and current baselines.

41



This page is intentionally left blank



July 2022

CUMBRIA  
CLEAN ENERGY 

STRATEGY

43

Agenda Item 6



Foreword

Introduction

Responding to the Net Zero Imperative

Our Clean Energy Credentials

New Nuclear

Fusion and Innovation 

Offshore Wind 

Hydrogen & CCUS

Renewable Energy Technologies 

Networks Storage and Flexibility

Delivering Our Ambitions

4

6

12

16

22

26

28 

32

36

40

44

CUMBRIA  
CLEAN ENERGY 
STRATEGY

Contents

JULY 2022

N

44



FOREWORD

Cumbria’s vision is to be “The place to live, 
work, visit and invest sustainably - where 
exceptional industry and innovation meets 
a breathtakingly beautiful and productive 
landscape” with this vision underpinned 
by three strategic touchstones – net zero, 
productivity, and inclusive growth. This Clean 
Energy Strategy supports the delivery of this 
vision and our three strategic touchstones 
being a key component of delivering net 
zero in Cumbria; fostering productivity 
improvements through new technology 
development and providing long term high 
quality jobs to support inclusive growth. 

Importantly, in developing this strategy, we 
were clear that it needed to be based on 
the unique competitive advantages that 
Cumbria has, to ensure that the strategy 
is both ambitious and deliverable and 
will support the drive to net zero. We all 
recognise that achieving net zero is a global 
challenge and one that all of us need to 
work together to address, that is why at 
Cumbria LEP, working with all of our partners, 
we have identified twin priorities on which 
we will demonstrate leadership, namely 
clean energy generation and business 
decarbonisation. This strategy is focused on 
clean energy generation with the business 
decarbonisation aspects addressed through 
the CLEP Business Decarbonisation 10 Point 
Plan, which we are currently implementing. 

The focus on the twin priorities is not where 
our role stops as we will be strong supportive 
partners on both transport decarbonisation 
and natural capital, recognising the 
importance of both of these priorities 
in delivering Cumbria’s overall net zero 
ambitions. It is particularly important that 
Cumbria’s exceptional natural capital 
effectively supports the journey to net zero in 
a way that benefits our economy, businesses 
and communities. These important 
priorities are being taken forward through 
complementary strategies and work streams. 

Cumbria starts in a very strong position, with 
its natural assets and industrial heritage 
making it uniquely placed to be a net 
clean energy generator, given that it 
already provides three times more clean 
energy generation than that consumed in 
electricity, through offshore wind and other 
renewable sources. 

UK Government set out its pathway to 
net zero in a series of strategy documents 
issued over the last 18 months, from the 10 
Point Plan for a Green Revolution, the Net 
Zero Strategy and most recently the Energy 
Security Strategy. That is in addition to the 
overall target established by the 6th Carbon 
budget from the independent Climate 
Change Committee to achieve a 78%  
reduction in CO2  from 1990 levels by 2034 
and then net zero by 2050. This document 
outlines how Cumbria will effectively support 
the achievement of this national ambition. 

Our ambition is across all energy 
technologies from being at the forefront 
of a new nuclear renaissance; expanding 
our offshore wind capability establishing 
hydrogen and carbon storage infrastructure 
that can help decarbonise our energy 
intensive industries. Cumbria also has the 
potential to be the test bed for a wide 
range of renewable energy schemes that 
can be deployed at rural and community 
level. Integration with the Borderlands 
Energy Masterplan will help lead the way 
on a diverse range of renewable schemes 
spanning onshore wind, bio-energy, solar, 
hydro and other new technologies as these 
emerge. Delivery across these technologies 
could provide an additional 9GW of 
clean energy - the equivalent of removing 
25 million tonnes of CO2  per year. This is 
expected to provide up to 13,000 long-term 
skilled jobs in the county.

In setting out our ambition we have 
established principles that ensure clean 
energy development must not be at the 
detriment of Cumbria’s natural environment 
and historic assets and that developments 
should place the community at the heart of 
decision making. 

In summary, we have a clear vision, one that 
builds on Cumbria’s unique natural assets 
and industrial heritage, but importantly 
moves this to the next level, providing an 
exciting next chapter in which Cumbria is 
as a major contributor to UK clean energy 
generation, delivering on our net zero and 
levelling up ambitions through sustained 
investment and economic growth.

Lord Inglewood
Chair, Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership

45



6 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 7

INTRODUCTION
Cumbria has played an 
important and long-standing 
role in generating conventional 
energy to meet UK demand 
through higher carbon sources 
such as gas and through lower 
carbon sources such as nuclear, 
wind, solar and biomass.
Cumbria is at the forefront of the UK’s 
commitment to net zero. Through maximising 
our unique historic and natural assets and 
capabilities, we can drive investment to 
power a sustainable future that balances 
environmental considerations with business 
productivity and levelling up ambitions. 

Cumbria can make a powerful contribution 
to the decarbonisation of the UK through 
delivering opportunities in the clean 
energy sector and reducing emissions. The 
achievement of net zero will be influenced 
by a number of policy influences including 
the decarbonisation of heat, buildings and 
transport, alongside energy transition. 

Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (CLEP) 
have identified two strategic priorities of 

focus as part of the overall achievement 
of net zero: Clean Energy Generation and 
Business Decarbonisation. 

The focus of this strategy is on Clean 
Energy Generation as part of the 
overall achievement of net zero. The 
decarbonisation of buildings, transport, 
industry and the natural environment is 
being taken forward through aligned 
strategies, including CLEP’s 10 Point Business 
Decarbonisation Plan. This Clean Energy 
Strategy provides stakeholders with a 
comprehensive assessment of how a wide 
range of clean energy opportunities could 
be deployed in Cumbria in alignment 
with government policy. The actions 
identified in the strategy will act as a 
stimulus to development and provide a 
basis for stakeholders to assess progress. The 
target audience for the strategy includes 
government, local stakeholders, business 
and potential investors. 

Cumbria’s unique assets will provide the 
platform for Cumbria to become a major 
contributor UK clean energy generation. 
This will enable us to deliver on our net zero 
and levelling up ambitions through securing 
investment to support sustainable and 
inclusive economic growth. 

“Cumbria, the UK’s natural 
capital for clean energy 

generation”

• Offshore Wind

• Nuclear

• Hydrogen / CCUS

• Renewables

CLEAN ENERGY 
GENERATION

BUSINESS 
DECARBONISATION

• Energy Efficiency/
optimisation

• Switch to low carbon 
energy sources

CLEP Clean 
Growth 
Priorities

46



88 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 9

0
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000

100,000
110,000
120,000
130,000
140,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GW
h 

ge
ne

ra
te

d

Growth in UK renewable energy genera�on

Other renewables
Onshore wind
Solar photovoltaics
Offshore wind

Our strategic priorities reflect our thematic 
areas of focus:

• Becoming a significant provider and UK 
centre of excellence for new nuclear 
fission and fusion power 

• Expanding offshore wind capacity and 
promoting Cumbrian ports to become 
Operation and Maintenance (O&M) 
hubs for new developments 

• Establishing Cumbria as a priority for the 
next phase of UK hydrogen and carbon 
storage industrial cluster development

• Positioning Cumbria as a test bed for 
renewable energy technologies and 
community led developments 

• Supporting energy resilience and 
security as well as delivering storage 
solutions 

CONTRIBUTION TO UK RENEWABLE 
ENERGY GENERATION

National Position 

Across the UK there has been strong growth in 
renewable energy generation and capacity. 

Over the period 2009 to 2021, total generation 
capacity increased sixfold from 8,000 MW to 
49,400 MW and the total amount of renewable 
electricity generated rose from 25,200 GWh 
to peak at 134,600 GWh in 2020 (a fivefold 
increase). By 2020 renewables accounted 
for 43% of all electricity generation, although 
that fell to 39% in 2021 due to less favourable 
weather conditions.

Cumbria’s Contribution

Cumbria makes a substantial contribution to 
UK renewable generation and capacity. It is 
estimated that Cumbria accounted for 4.3% 
of all installed UK capacity in 2020 (MW) and 
5.6% of all UK electricity generation (GWh). This 
is well ahead of its share of UK population (0.7%) 
and land mass (2.8% of UK total). Clean energy 
generation in Cumbria is relatively widespread 
but typically small scale with the notable 
exception of offshore wind energy renewables.

Growth in UK renewable energy generation  

Current Clean Energy Production in Cumbria  

Source: Energy Trends, BEIS, Table 6.1 Source: NP11 Energy & Clean Growth Report & CLEP 

SOURCES OF RENEWABLE ENERGY IN CUMBRIA 

15.9% 1.6% 1.3%

6 wind farms 
accounting for 

239 wind installations 
accounting for 

3 plants 
accounting for 

59 schemes 
accounting for 

22 anaerobic digestion 
installations accounting for 

8,686 installations 
accounting for 

Offshore Wind Onshore Wind Plant Biomass

HydroAnaerobic DigestionPhotovoltaics

of UK energy generation by source of UK energy generation by source of UK energy generation by source 

of UK energy generation by sourceof UK energy generation by sourceof UK energy generation by source
0.8% 1.6% 0.4%

47



10 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 11

NET EXPORTER TO THE  
NATIONAL GRID

The official data for offshore wind generation 
allocates installed capacity to where the 
supply ‘lands’. This allocates a substantial 
proportion of capacity to Lancashire. In 
reality, the six wind farms in the Morecambe 
Bay/Irish Sea area off Barrow are part of 
the Cumbria renewable energy supply, 
accounting for 1,656 MW capacity and 16% 
of the UK total in 2020. In contrast, Robin Rigg 
wind farm in the Solway Firth is in Scottish 
waters but ‘lands’ at Workington. 

Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (CLEP) 
has identified twin priorities in relation to Net 
Zero – Clean Energy Generation and Business 
Decarbonisation - to meet Government’s 
target of 2050 and to support Cumbria’s 
aspiration to achieve this as soon as 
possible. CLEP is fully committed to transport 
decarbonisation and maximising the benefits 
from natural capital but recognises that other 
partners are best placed to lead on these 
priorities. This strategy outlines Cumbria’s assets 
and capabilities in delivering clean energy 
generation, levering in investment in this and 
thereby supporting the transition to a low 
carbon economy. 

It recognises Cumbria’s long established 
nuclear and energy excellence, and the 
natural resources Cumbria has to lever as a 
major player and contributor to UK renewable 
energy generation. The sector supports high 
value supply chain clusters, which in turn 
support jobs, skills and education, innovation 
and technology. 

The strategy focuses on the commercial and 
business-led clean energy opportunities, which 
will make the most significant contribution 
to meeting the UK’s energy requirements as 
defined by energy capacity and generation 
and will drive diversification and productivity 
in Cumbria’s economy as defined by jobs, 
exports and GVA. 

It:

• Establishes Cumbria’s clean energy 
credentials and prospects for growth 

• Sets out a pathway for developing clean 
energy generation in Cumbria

• Creates a shared vision for clean energy in 
Cumbria 

Cumbria consumed 2,848 GWh of electricity 
in 2020. If all the wind energy produced 
in the Walney wind farms were included 
in Cumbria’s renewable generation then 
Cumbria is a significant exporter to the 
national grid, with renewables production 
accounting for 305% of consumption.

• Encourages public and private sector 
investment in clean energy generation to 
support economic growth and the levelling 
up agenda. 

Delivery of the Cumbria Clean Energy 
Strategy will yield positive economic, social 
and environmental outcomes for Cumbria, 
including: 

• Diverse low carbon economy
• More resilient energy supply facilitating 

affordable power 
• Reduction in CO2 emissions and improved 

air quality
• Enhanced productivity and increased 

exports 
• Creation of green job opportunities 
• New products and services driving 

benefits for local businesses and boosting 
competitiveness.

The Clean Energy Strategy aligns with 
complementary strategies which will deliver 
the enabling infrastructure to realise the 
benefits of clean energy generation and 
deliver impact in our communities. Aligned 
strategies such as the Local Skills Report 
2022 and Cumbria Transport Infrastructure 
Plan 2022-2037 will be taken forward in 
parallel to deliver the enabling infrastructure 
and necessary skills. In addition, active 
engagement with National Grid, Network 
Operators and other statutory bodies will 
facilitate vital connections. 

The delivery of the Clean Energy Strategy 
will be led by Cumbria Local Enterprise 
Partnership and overseen by the Clean Energy 
Sector Panel, working in partnership with 
investors, developers and operators to drive 
positive economic, social and environmental 
outcomes. 

Renewables generation capacity and actual electricity generation 2020

Source Installed capacity MW end of 2020 Electricity Generation in 2020 (GWh)

Cumbria UK Cumbria
 share

Cumbria UK Cumbria
 share

Photovoltics 111 3,462 0.8% 104 13,158 0.8%

Offshore wind* 329 10,383 3.2% 1,289 40,681 3.2%

Onshore wind 214 4,102 1.5% 549 34,688 1.6%

Hydro 7 1,876 0.4% 24 6,754 0.4%

Anaerobic Digestion 9 38 1.6% 47 2,904 1.6%

Plant Biomass 52 4,553 1.1% 344 26,845 1.3%

Other 8 2,900 0.3% 16 9,573 0.2%

*Total 730 47,813 1.5% 2,373 134,681 1.8%

**All offshore wind 
allocated to Cumbria

1,656 10,383 15.9% 6,488 40,681 15.9%

Revised total 
renewables

2,057 47,813 4.3% 7,572 134,603 5.6%

Source: Renewable electricity by local authority 2014 – 2020. Note Cumbria offshore wind share for generation adjusted by applying 
share of capacity to total UK offshore wind generation in 2020. * The share is based on the wind far capacity allocated to Barrow 
(329 MW) and excludes the share allocated to Lancaster (1,327 MW). ** This share includes the proportion allocated to Lancaster in 
recognition that the six wind farms in Morecambe Bay/Irish Sea are part of the Cumbria renewable energy supply.

STRATEGIC FOCUS ON CLEAN ENERGY GENERATION

48



12 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 13

The UN Sustainable Development Goals 
(SDGs) provides ‘a blueprint to achieve a 
better and more sustainable future for all 
people and the world by 2030’. The 17 goals 
align with UK clean energy policy aspirations 
including ‘affordable and clean energy’, 
‘responsible consumption and production’ 
and climate action’. 

The UK played a key role in shaping the Paris 
Agreement to combat climate change and 
in 2019 enshrined a commitment into law to 
reduce its contribution to global warming 
by 2050 through net zero emissions. In April 
2021 this included an obligation to secure 
a 78% reduction by 2035. The Ten Point Plan 
for a Green Industrial Revolution details the 
UK’s approach to meeting this commitment, 
including advancing investment in low 
carbon power and growing employment 
within low carbon industries. Cumbria can 
make a significant contribution to delivering 
the Ten Point Plan. This Clean Energy Strategy 
directly aligns with the ambition to deliver:

RESPONDING TO THE NET 
ZERO IMPERATIVE 
Clean energy can play a key role in levelling 
up the economy to address regional disparity 
in areas that Cumbria has underperformed 
in comparison to other regions. The UK policy 
for levelling up is set out in the Levelling Up 
White Paper issued in February 2022 that 
identifies 12 priority areas to address by 2030. 

Delivering on this Clean Energy Strategy will act 
as a direct stimulus to three of these priorities 
for living standards, R&D and skills whilst also 
indirectly benefiting all of the 12 missions 
including health, well being and pride in place.

The Net Zero Strategy: Build Back Greener 
seeks to build on this progress, setting out 
plans for reducing emissions from each 
sector of the economy. The Net Zero 
Strategy sets out the ambition to fully 
decarbonise the British power system by 
2035.

The British Energy Security Strategy sets out 
the ambition to deliver secure, clean and 
affordable British energy for the long term. 
This builds on the ambitions set out in the 
‘Ten Point Plan’ and ‘Net Zero Strategy’ and 
provides a strategic response to rising global 
energy prices and the need to boost and 
diversify sources of homegrown energy that 
is affordable, clean and secure. 

“Energy is the lifeblood of the 
global economy. From heating 
our homes to powering our 
factories, everything we do 
depends on a reliable flow of 
affordable energy”.
The strategy includes a commitment to 
the significant acceleration of nuclear 
investment, with the ambition of up to 24GW 
to come from nuclear power by 2050. The 
strategy sets out plans to set up a new 
Government body, “Great British Nuclear”, 
and to bring forward new projects, including 
large scale new nuclear power plants, 
smaller scale Small Modular Reactors (SMRs) 
and Advanced Modular Reactors (AMRs), 
using new technologies

A decision is also set to be taken in 2022 on 
the location for a protype nuclear fusion 
plant, a first-of-kind Spherical Tokamak 
for Energy Production (STEP) facility. The 
Moorside site in West Cumbria is one of the 
final five shortlisted locations. 

Point 1: Advancing Offshore 
Wind

Point 2: Driving the Growth 
of Low Carbon Hydrogen

Point 3: Delivering New and 
Advanced Nuclear Power

Point 8: Investing in Carbon 
Capture, Usage and Storage   

April 2022

CUMBRIA  
CLEAN 

ENERGY 
STRATEGY

CLEP PRIORITIES REGIONAL INITIATIVES 

NATIONAL PRIORITIES

CLEAN ENERGY 
GENERATION

LED BY

SUPPORTING PARTNERS TO 
DECARBONISE TRANSPORT AND UTILISE 

NATURAL CAPITAL

NET ZERO NORTH WEST  
ECONOMIC INVESTMENT  

PROSPECTUS

NP11 ENERGY AND  
CLEAN GROWTH

BORDERLANDS INCLUSIVE  
GROWTH DEAL

BUSINESS 
DECARBONISATION

10 Point Plan
November 2020

6th Carbon Budget
April 2021

Energy Security 
Strategy
April 2022

Net Zero Strategy
October 2021

N

49



14 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 15

The role of gas in the transition to clean 
energy, including utilising the empty caverns 
for CO2  storage and delivering on the 
commitment to four Carbon Capture Usage 
and Storage (CCUS) clusters by 2030 is 
outlined. Hydrogen provides an alternative 
to natural gas, and the strategy sets out 
the intention to double the UK ambition for 
hydrogen production to up to 10GW by 
2030. This includes a target of 1GW of CCUS-
enabled hydrogen by 2025. 

The UK is a global leader in offshore wind 
and a pioneer in floating wind. The strategy 
articulates the ambition to deliver up to 50GW 
by 2030, including up to 5GW of floating wind. 

The Net Zero North West Economic Investment 
Prospectus sets out an ambition to transition 
the North West as the UK’s first decarbonised 
region and industrial cluster to meet the net 
zero goal by 2040. The North West of England 
currently produces approximately 38 mega-
tonnes of carbon dioxide. The Prospectus sets 
out how the Net Zero target will be achieved 
through the delivery of 3 key objectives:

• Delivery of a fully integrated decarbonised 
industrial cluster driving a sustainable 
economy

• Securing clean energy as a platform for all 
decarbonisation activities across the North 
West

• Creating the eco-system and market for 
hydrogen to support decarbonisation.

The Prospectus sets out 18 investment cases 
to deliver this ambition, which collectively 
would unlock £206.9bn of planned spending, 
securing or creating 660,000 jobs, and 
growing the economy by £285bn in GVA. 

The CLEP Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) sets 
out a vision for Cumbria as:

“The place to live, work, 
visit and invest sustainably – 
where exceptional industry 
and innovation meets a 
breathtakingly beautiful and 
productive landscape”
A key priority of the LIS includes identification 
of the opportunities for innovation in 
clean growth. CLEP is committed to 
supporting Cumbria’s ambition to reach 
Net Zero ahead of the current Government 
commitment and has agreed two priorities 
for the organisation to focus on:

• Supporting Clean Energy Generation

• Supporting Cumbria’s Businesses to 
Decarbonise. 

The Restart, Reboot, Rethink – A Plan for 
Cumbria’s Economic Recovery established 
a focus on six ‘rethink’ themes, including 
‘Clean Energy Production – a world-
recognised heritage and expertise, which 
provides the platform for significant future 
investment in energy generation’. 

The CLEP Futures Framework identifies 
‘Sustainable Cumbria’ as a key objective 
to retaining and attracting young people: 
addressing the climate and environmental 
crisis by greening the economy, capitalising 
on Cumbria’s strategic position as a pioneer 
in the clean energy sector; and provide 
much needed employment opportunities to 
support diversification and growth. 

The Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus sets out 
an ambition for the growth of a Cumbrian 
energy cluster, with nuclear as a key 
component of a low carbon, clean growth 
economy. The Prospectus articulates the 
strengths of Cumbria as a Centre of Nuclear 
Excellence which can support diversification, 
export, and development. 

The Borderlands Energy Masterplan is part 
of the £450m Borderlands Inclusive Growth 
Deal which was signed in March 2021 and 
includes encouraging green growth through 
investment in energy transition as one of 
four key investment themes with provision 
of £53.1m to stimulate growth. The Energy 
Masterplan establishes an energy baseline 
to enable investment through Local Area 
Energy Investment Plans. This CLEP Clean 
Energy Strategy aligns with the Borderlands 
Energy Masterplan and it is believed that 
the Growth Deal can facilitate a significant 
contribution from renewable energy 
generation in the more rural areas of the 
region.

This Clean Energy Strategy sets out our plan 
to deliver against these policy ambitions 
and position Cumbria as a key contributor to 
clean energy generation in the UK. 

This strategy focuses on Clean Energy 
Generation. Business decarbonisation is 
addressed in the separate CLEP 10 Point 
Business Decarbonisation Plan that sets out a 
way forward spanning large carbon emitting 
industries through to SMEs across every 
sector. There are links between clean energy 
generation with decarbonisation and these 
links are picked up in the thematic areas of 
focus notably in the Hydrogen chapter.

50



16 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 17

OUR CLEAN ENERGY 
CREDENTIALS 
LONGSTANDING CONTRIBUTION TO 
UK ENERGY REQUIREMENTS 

Cumbria has a longstanding history in the 
generation of nuclear power, as a pioneer 
in nuclear energy through the Windscale 
Pile reactors, Calder Hall and Windscale 
Advanced Gas-cooled Reactor prototype, 
which were the seeds of the UK’s nuclear 
programme. The Sellafield site has built 
generations of globally recognised experts 
in nuclear plant operations, construction 
management, material science, 
decommissioning, and research and 
development. Furthermore, the nuclear 
technology underpinning the nuclear 
submarine industry in Barrow supports 
diversification into the civil nuclear market. 

Since 1985 more than 6.5 trillion cubic feet 
of gas from the east Irish Sea has been 
landed and processed at the Barrow Gas 
Terminals operated by Spirit Energy. At its 
peak, the Morecambe Bay gas hub supplied 
10% of domestic gas demand and played 
a big part in the UK’s conversion from 
coal to gas. Today, the hub is contributing 
enough energy to heat 1 million homes 
but is expected to reach the end of its gas 
production life in the mid-to-late 2020s. As 
part of Spirit Energy’s refocused business, 
the company is maturing plans for the 
conversion of its Morecambe Bay gas hub 
into a net zero cluster of national scale and 
importance focused on hydrogen and 
carbon capture, usage and storage (CCUS). 

There are currently six offshore windfarms 
off the Cumbria Coastline, and the towns 
of Barrow and Workington have strong 
capabilities as Operation & Maintenance 
(O&M) hubs servicing these requirements. 

This longstanding energy experience 
has developed a strong ecosystem of 
professional and technical expertise which 
can fuel growth in clean energy in the future. 

RICH NATURAL CAPITAL

Cumbria is rich in natural capital, which will 
play a vital role in helping the area achieve 
net zero carbon emissions through carbon 
sequestration and low carbon energy 
generation. The Clean Energy Strategy 
will connect clean energy generation 
opportunities to the assets we have to lever, 
including the coast line and river systems, 
geothermal potential, and the sea bed, 
disused mines and salt caverns. This needs 
to be carefully managed to balance 
environmental, economic and social impacts.

 

51



18 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 19

SKILLED AND INNOVATIVE  
TALENT POOL  

The ambitions set out in this strategy require 
effective collaboration between investors 
and providers to strengthen Cumbria’s skills 
base to support the clean energy sector to 
expand by investing in the workforce of the 
future and enabling local residents to access 
the new jobs being created. 

The University of Cumbria is investing heavily 
in new campuses in Carlisle and Barrow 
which will be a key driver for the further 
development of higher level skills. In addition, 
there are strong linkages to the University 
of Lancaster and the University of Central 
Lancashire, alongside four strong performing 
Further Education colleges and an extensive 
network of training organisations, which 
provides a strong base for enabling the 
provision of future skills to meet demand. 
Cumbria has specific nuclear, manufacturing 
and offshore academic and training facilities 
including the University of Manchester 
Dalton Facility, Energus, National College for 
Nuclear, Gen 2, the Energy Coast UTC and 
the Advanced Manufacturing Technology 
Centre at Furness College. 

The Local Skills Report 2022 identifies the 
need to look to the future and the skill 
needs of a green, low carbon economy. 
This is reinforced by the Cumbria Local Skills 
Improvement Plan (LSIP). The Skills Advisory 
Panel will work with the Clean Energy Sector 
Panel to identify the skills and support 
required for this transition and will facilitate 
opportunities to develop the future talent 
pipeline to serve clean energy investments. 

SUPPLY CHAIN STRENGTHS

Cumbria has exceptional manufacturing 
and engineering capability, with one of 
the most important concentrations in the 
UK accounting for 21% of total GVA in the 
county. The manufacturing sector has 
strength in depth with expertise in nuclear 
in addition to advanced manufacturing 
specialisms such as marine engineering 
and sub-sea technologies which provides 
significant scope for diversification to support 
clean energy sectoral growth. 

There is significant depth to the professional 
and technical services supporting the 
delivery of major projects in Cumbria, which 
provides a key strength. This includes civil 
engineering construction and architectural/
engineering skills linked to specialist 
construction, especially nuclear activity, that 
takes place. 

Growth in the clean energy sector will 
present local SMEs in Cumbria with 
major supply chain and value adding 
opportunities, building on our strengths to 
grow opportunities for diversification and 
export. 

ENABLING INFRASTRUCTURE 

Cumbria has the enabling infrastructure to 
support growth and secure investment in 
clean energy generation.

Strategically Connected 

Cumbria sits at the heart of the UK on a vital 
cross roads between England and Scotland, 
supporting critical north/south (M6/West 
Coast Mainline) and east/west links (A66 
and A69). Strategic connections include 

the Port of Barrow and Port of Workington, 
and Carlisle Airport that enable supply chain 
development and trade with Scotland, 
Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland. 
Rail infrastructure includes the West Coast 
Main Line providing connections to London, 
Glasgow and other major cities, the Furness 
Line providing connections to Manchester 
Airport and London, and the Cumbria Coast 
Line connecting Barrow to Carlisle via the 
west coast, including Whitehaven, Sellafield 
and Workington.

52



2020 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 21

Critical Transmission And Storage Networks

Cumbria’s energy assets are connected 
to the National Grid through large scale 
gas storage transmission assets, and power 
transmission assets:

• The National Gas Transmission Network 
that supplies Cumbria is fed from the 
Barrow Gas Terminal. Cumbria’s gas 
network is managed by two Gas Network 
Providers: Cadent in the South, and 
Northern Gas Networks in the North. This 
means that the county is connected to 
the North East and the Pennines via the 
NGN network; and Liverpool, Manchester 
and the Midlands via Cadent.

• National Grid is responsible for the 400kV 
UK double circuit transmission line that 
runs down the M6 corridor with Cumbria 
connections at Harker in the north and 
Hutton in the south. At these two points 
the voltage is reduced to 132kV and 
distributed by Electricity North West 
Limited, forming the Cumbria Ring around 
the west coast and central spine of 
Cumbria. 

• Two Battery Energy Storage Systems 
(BESS) exist in Cumbria that provide 
service to the National Grid. The 
Roosecote Battery Energy Storage System 
site based in Barrow-in-Furness is a 49MW 
Battery Energy Storage Site and Cleator 
Battery Storage is a 10MW Low Carbon 
Battery Park.  These storage systems 
provide electricity to the grid on an on-
demand basis. 

Sites And Premises

There are a range of commercial sites 
and premises in Cumbria that are well 
suited to supporting growth in the clean 
energy sector. These sites can meet the 

requirements of clean energy producers 
and consumers to facilitate business growth 
and job creation. There are sites that are 
significant at a national level for large scale 
development as well as regional level to 
boost local economy.

Leveraging our Credentials 

Cumbria has key assets and capabilities 
to leverage across several clean energy 
opportunity areas. These are explored in 
subsequent chapters of the strategy and 
include:

• New nuclear

• Fusion and innovation

• Offshore wind 

• Hydrogen & CCUS

• Renewable Energy Technologies

• Networks Storage & Flexibility 

Potential Development 
Sites in Cumbria 

53



22 23

FOCUS ON 
NEW NUCLEAR

NATIONAL POSITION

Government’s vision is for Nuclear Fission 
to play a key role in UK Clean Energy 
generation has been laid out progressively 
in the 10 Point Plan, Net Zero Strategy and 
most recently the Energy Security Strategy 
published in April 2022. There is a clear 
ambition to embrace the safe, clean and 
affordable new generation of nuclear 
reactors taking the UK back to a pre-
eminence in a field where we once led the 
world. Currently, nuclear provides about 
15% of UK electricity demand and without 
further investment this will rapidly diminish 
as existing stations reach end of life. EDF is 
currently constructing the 3.2GW Hinkley 
Point C nuclear power station in Somerset 
that is expected to come on line in 2027 
and the Energy Security Strategy recognises 
the Moorside area adjacent to Sellafield as 
one of 8 sites currently designated in the 
UK for new nuclear facilities setting out the 
following ambitions:

• Increase nuclear generation capacity to 
24GW by 2050 to contribute up to 25% of 
UK’s electricity demand.

• Take 1 new facility to Final Investment 
Decision in the 2022 parliament session 
with 2 further facilities in the next 
2023 session leading to a potential of 
approximately 8 further facilities.

• Establish a “Great British Nuclear Vehicle” 
to accelerate the delivery of nuclear 
projects to meet the challenging 
timescales without any compromise to 
safety.

NDA owns approximately 1100 hectares of 
land to the north and south of the Sellafield 
Site. Moorside to the north of the site is 
designated in National Policy Statement EN-6 
as suitable for new nuclear development. 
Some of the NDA owned land is reserved 
for Sellafield related activity and Waste 
Management development but still leaves 
significant potential for a range of nuclear 
power developments that need to be 
considered in conjunction with nuclear fusion 
and the STEP prototype bid that is addressed 
separately in the following section. This 
designated land is a valuable asset for the UK 
to achieve its stated ambition for new nuclear 
development.

Through the nuclear decommissioning 
programme at Sellafield, waste management 
at the Low Level Waste Repository and the 
Nuclear Submarine programme at Barrow, 
Cumbria has built an extensive nuclear 
capability with a supportive supply chain and 
skills development infrastructure. The National 
Nuclear Laboratory’s nuclear technology 
development capability together with 
other research facilities such as Manchester 
University’s Dalton Cumbria Facility and 
RAICO robotics development facility mean 
that Cumbria has the full infrastructure in 
place to support the development of nuclear 
power. This applies at both county level and in 
supporting development across the UK.

The potential to deliver new nuclear 
power in conjunction with wider nuclear 
decommissioning excellence is outlined in the 
Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus.

N

recognise the Sellafield area as a potential 
site for first phase deployment and 
Cumbria can offer the manufacturing 
capability and sites for the factories 
needed.

There are a wide range of other SMR types 
that are being developed world-wide and 
developers are actively seeking suitable 
sites in the UK. They potentially can be 
delivered without Government support but 
will need designs to be approved through 
the UK regulatory process.

Advanced Modular Reactors (AMRs)

Advanced Modular Reactors (AMRs) 
would be a new generation of nuclear 
reactors that use novel fuels and coolants. 
They would use a similar modular build 
approach to SMR but offer potential for 
operation at higher temperature that 
could be utilised for direct hydrogen and 
synthetic fuel manufacture. A recent 
Government consultation has identified 
High Temperature Gas Reactors as 
the preferred technology and a BEIS 
procurement process has commenced to 
develop the concept.

CURRENT STATUS IN CUMBRIA

In 1956 Calder Hall was the first nuclear 
power station in the world to export 
electricity to a national grid and the 
Windscale Advanced Gas-cooled Reactor 
(AGR) facility paved the way for the 
deployment of AGR reactors across the 
UK, which has formed the backbone of 
the current UK nuclear power capability. 
Nuclear power generation in Cumbria 
ceased in 2003 with the closure of Calder 
Hall after 47 years of service.

REACTOR TYPOLOGY: 

Large ‘GigaWatt’ Nuclear Facilities

These are GigaWatt scale stations each 
with multiple reactors. Hinkley Point C is 
a EDF developed European Pressurised 
Water Reactor. EDF is in advanced 
negotiation with Government to deliver 
a second project at Sizewell C and are 
part of a consortium that has expressed 
strong interest beyond that at Moorside. 
In addition to providing electricity to the 
national grid they offer opportunities for 
direct CO2  capture from air and uses for 
co-generation of hydrogen for industry. 
A Bechtel led consortium is in active 
discussion with Government over a similar 
scale Westinghouse “AP1000” reactor site 
at Wylfa in North Wales. These Gigawatt 
reactors offer the highest clean energy 
generation capacity, make use of proven 
technology but have the highest capital 
cost and the longest timescale for delivery. 

Small Modular Reactors (SMRs)

Small Modular Reactors (SMRs) have a 
power output typically up to 500MW and 
are designed to be manufactured at 
factories for installation on site. These offer 
potential cost and schedule advantages, 
if sufficient repeat orders are obtained 
and have passive safety features. RR-SMR 
is a Rolls Royce led consortium that has 
attracted £490m of public/private backing 
to develop a Light Water ~500MW reactor. 
A number of manufacturing facilities will 
be built to enable the delivery of a first 
phase of up to 6 reactors and then to 
expand further as a wholly commercial 
venture in UK and worldwide. RR-SMR 

54



2424 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 25

AMBITION

Cumbria can build on its vast 
experience and capability 
to be the preferred siting 
for “First of a Kind” nuclear 
development through fission 
and fusion to become a 
significant generator of clean 
nuclear energy to realise 
government energy security 
ambition.
New nuclear power can draw on synergies 
with major project delivery at Sellafield and 
BAE Systems sites to successfully deliver 
large infrastructure projects and through 
these to deliver long term socio-economic 
development for Cumbria.

New nuclear power has the potential to 
link to wider industrial decarbonisation and 
utilisation of hydrogen and synthetic fuels. 
In particular it could play a key role in the 
decarbonisation of the adjacent Sellafield 
nuclear sites. This is a concept to develop with 
Moorside as a Clean Energy Hub.

With Moorside identified as land designated 
for future nuclear expansion the forward path 
is to proceed with SMR delivery in the shortest 
possible timescale. Two reactors could deliver 
nearly 1GW of clean electricity generation 
by 2030. NDA and RR-SMR are in advanced 
discussions on a collaboration agreement to 
put a delivery plan in place. 

FORWARD PLAN

Further expansion depends on the outcome 
of the STEP siting competition and completion 
of a full assessment of the NDA land 
availability. In the short term, SMR and STEP 
are the two key priorities for development 
but the Sellafield area has the potential to 
support wider nuclear ambition as set out in 
the British Energy Security Strategy. 

New nuclear development will bring 
manufacturing and service opportunities for 
the Cumbria wider supply chain.  Kingmoor 
Park is one of 6 sites in the UK being 
considered by RR-SMR for their High Pressure 
Vessel Manufacturing Facility. The wider 
nuclear power expansion across the UK also 
offers significant supply chain opportunities. 
A Memorandum of Understanding has been 
established for the north of England to deliver 
£2.5 billion procurements in support of the 
Sizewell C project with negotiations ongoing 
with Government and an investment decision 
is expected in 2022. 

The wider North West region including 
North Wales has been at the heart of the 
UK’s nuclear capability spanning the entire 
nuclear fuel cycle as well as universities and 
Engineering/Design capability. Through 
membership of the North West Nuclear Arc, 
we will build on synergies for the wider region 
to deliver the overall government ambition for 
new nuclear clean energy generation.

Capacity of the Electricity distribution system 
is a key factor for nuclear power generation 
in Cumbria. The engagement with the 
National Grid and the regional District 
Network Operator (DNO) Electricity North 
West is outlined in the Networks Storage and 
Flexibility section of the strategy. 

 

Action Lead / 
Support

Timeframe

Deliver New Nuclear Fission Generation at Sellafield

• Put in place collaboration arrangement to deliver new 
SMR facility in Sellafield vicinity.

NDA/CLEP Summer 
2022

• Engage with Moorside SZC Consortium (including EDF) 
to re-affirm ambition for large gigawatt deployment in 
Cumbria and its interaction with other developments.

CLEP/NDA/
SZC

End of 2022

• Maintain dialogue with AMR developers for potential 
deployment in Sellafield vicinity.

CLEP Ongoing 

Enabling Actions

• Establish an effective relationship with the new Great British 
Nuclear Vehicle to deliver best use of nuclear designated 
land and to accelerate delivery of capability

CLEP/NDA/
CBC

Agree 
Cumbria 
approach 
by end of 
2022

• Complete assessment of nuclear designated land in 
Sellafield vicinity to determine overall development 
capacity in recognition of other NDA missions.

NDA End of 2022

• Grow Cumbria Supply Chain opportunities for SMR 
manufacturing, Sizewell C and other UK new nuclear 
projects.

CLEP Ongoing

N

55



26 27

NATIONAL POSITION

Government’s 10 Point Plan established a £1billion 
net zero innovation portfolio to accelerate low 
carbon technologies, business systems and 
business models across the net zero spectrum. 
BEIS has run a series of competitions across areas 
such as industrial hydrogen applications and 
CCUS, which are addressed in other chapters of 
this strategy. 

A key Government ambition is for the UK to be 
the first country to commercialise fusion energy 
technology that has the potential to transform 
low carbon clean energy production on a global 
scale into the future beyond the short term net 
zero targets. Government have provided £222m 
funding to advance a Spherical Tokamak for 
Energy Production (STEP) programme that is 
being led by the UK Atomic Energy Authority 
(UKAEA). 

This aims to build the first prototype facility to 
demonstrate commercial viability by 2040 
alongside a further £184m to support wider fusion 
facilities, infrastructure and apprenticeships to 
lay the foundations of a global hub for fusion 
innovation in the UK.

CURRENT STATUS IN CUMBRIA

The Moorside site, adjacent to Sellafield, has 
been put forward as Cumbria’s site in UKAEA’s 
competition to host the STEP facility and 
supporting infrastructure and is one of the five sites 
that have been shortlisted for final assessment. 

UKAEA have completed their assessment of 
potential sites and submitted recommendations 
to BEIS, with the final decision to be made by the 
Secretary of State by the end of December 2022. 

FORWARD PLAN

FOCUS ON 
FUSION AND INNOVATION

Calder Hall was the first commercial fission 
plant and Moorside can be the first for fusion. 
STEP would bring a billion-pound long term 
investment programme to Cumbria and the 
North West region. STEP would also bring wider 
growth for fusion technology development in 
fields such as Cryogenics, Robotics and specialist 
manufacturing. It would also pave the way for 
fusion skills development complementing the 
nuclear skills training already in place in Cumbria 
and act as a catalyst for wider innovation 
delivery in Cumbria.

The comprehensive case for Socio Economic 
improvement in Cumbria and wider North West 
has been made in the application as well as 
demonstrating that the capability exists to deliver 
this long term transformational clean energy 
generation project at Moorside. This will build 
upon existing research expertise such as the 
Manchester University Dalton Cumbria Facility 
and the National Nuclear Laboratory facilities at 
Sellafield and Workington.

AMBITION

Moorside can be the first of a 
kind commercial fusion Spherical 
Tokamak for Energy Production 
(STEP) prototype to build on our 
’first of a kind’ delivery capability 
and to drive innovation, 
productivity and levelling up in 
Cumbria.
In addition to the STEP programme with UKAEA 
there are a number of other complementary 
but independent fusion developments 
being pursued in the UK, CLEP will explore 
these opportunities as they reach a stage of 
deployment at a commercial level.

At a wider level, Clean Energy can act as a 
catalyst for innovation development in Cumbria 
and CLEP will continue to coordinate requests 
from the Net Zero Innovation programme to 
specific opportunities in Cumbria. CLEP will act as 
an enabler for technology development across 
the breadth of clean energy opportunities. 

Examples range from advancements in tidal/
wave/hydro technologies, bio-energy and other 
agricultural schemes to larger scale hydrogen 
and nuclear opportunities. Cumbria has the 
potential to lead the way in demonstrating 
the commercial viability of a wide range of 
clean opportunities relating to our natural 
renewable resources. This is further outlined in the 
Renewable Energy Technologies section. 

Action Lead / Support Timeframe

BEIS to make siting decision for STEP 
Fusion) to confirm whether Moorside is 
preferred site.

UKAEA/CLEP/CBC Ongoing 

Engage with wider fusion developers to 
seek prototype deployment opportunities 
at Moorside. 

CLEP Ongoing

Establish Cumbria as an innovation 
test bed for wide range of renewable 
technologies and business deployment 
models.

CLEP Ongoing

56



28 29

NATIONAL POSITION

Offshore wind has formed the backbone of 
the UK’s drive to clean energy generation 
with over 11GW capacity already in 
operation and a target of 50GW to be 
achieved by 2030. Costs have reduced 
by two thirds in the last decade and the 
UK is now a world leader in this field with 
associated high skilled job growth. The 
recently published Energy Security Strategy 
highlights the need to increase the pace 
of deployment that is constrained through 
planning and to further deploy floating wind 
in deeper further outshore locations in Celtic 
and Irish Seas.

The Crown Estate offered new leasing 
developments through a competitive 
leasing process and leasing Round 4 awards 
were made in Morecambe Bay but in the 
Scotwind auction announced in early 2022 
there were no awards in the Solway Firth 
area. The current floating wind bidding 
process is focused on the Celtic Sea in the 
South West of the UK.

FOCUS ON 
OFFSHORE WIND

CUMBRIA CURRENT STATUS

There is currently over 1.8GW clean energy 
generation capacity developed over the 
last 15 years around the Cumbrian coast 
focused around the Barrow/Morecambe 
Bay area and the Solway Firth. Barrow and 
Workington have established O&M hubs to 
support these developments, which directly 
employ over 400 people. 

Furness College plays a key role in skills 
development. There are a number of 
specialist companies supporting the offshore 
industry but the major expansion in UK 
manufacturing with large new factories has 
been focused in other areas, primarily on the 
east coast. 

The Crown Estate Round 4 leasing process 
in 2020 awarded two large developments 
in Morecambe Bay south of Cumbria with 
the 3.1 GW Mona and Morgan fields being 
developed by BP/ENBW and the 0.5GW 
Morecambe Offshore Windfarm being 
developed by Cobra/Floatation Energy. 
Cumbrian ports are well placed to support 
longer term operations and maintenance 
support. The connection points for the 
national grid are yet to confirmed but will 
not be in Cumbria. These developments are 
expected to be operational by 2028.

CLEP is an active participant in the Offshore 
Energy Alliance that works across the North 
West of England and Wales to support the 
development in the region. 

Current Offshore Wind Farms off the Cumbrian Coast

Operational Overall Capacity MW Number of Turbines

Barrow 2006 90 30

Robin Rigg 2010 180 60

Ormonde 2011 150 30

Walney 1 and 2 2012 367 102

West of Duddon Sands 2014 389 108

Walney Extension 2018 659 87

Total 1,835 417

Note this table provides the capacity of offshore wind farms (MW) as provided by operators and does not directly align with published 
offshore wind generation figures cited in official data on page 10.    

Source: www.windenergynetwork.co.uk , 2022 UK Offshore Windfarm Map; Orsted.co.uk 

Current and Proposed 
Offshore Wind Farms in 
Cumbria 

57



3030 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 31

FORWARD PLAN

Action Lead / Support Timeframe

Extend the life and use of existing 
developments and identify plans for de or 
re-commissioning. 

Wind Operators Ongoing 

Maximise Cumbria manufacturing 
opportunities from the UK wide and 
export expansion of offshore wind.

CLEP / BEIS / Growth Hub Ongoing 

Continue to work with Port Operators to 
establish Cumbrian ports as the O&M Hub 
for Round 4 Lease developments. 

ABP / CCC / CLEP 2022-2023

Lobby Crown Estates for future Round 
5 Lease and co-production/off-grid 
solutions.

CLEP 2022

Maximise synergies with the nuclear 
sector with expertise in management of 
assets in challenging environments (e.g. 
robotics/remote inspection/data analysis/
safety systems)

CLEP / NDA / Wind Operators Ongoing 

AMBITION

Cumbria ports will provide the 
O&M hub of a growing regional 
offshore wind capacity making 
a significant contribution to UK 
clean energy requirements. 
This is further supported by 
growing Cumbria’s specialist 
manufacturing capability 
and a world-wide reputation 
for offshore operations skills 
development.
Cumbria’s north west coastal location 
make it a prime candidate for the further 
development of offshore wind. Whilst recent 
and current bidding rounds have focused 
on other areas and further offshore there is 
still strong potential to expand the current 
developments that already form over 10% of 
the UK’s offshore capacity.

Deep water port facilities in either 
Merseyside or Belfast are needed for the 
major installation/construction for new 
Irish Sea developments but there is still a 
significant role that can be played by Barrow 
and Workington to both support construction 
and importantly to provide the maintenance 
and operations bases for the northern Irish 
Sea sector. 

The Green Investment Plan published in 2022 
by a group of potential investors in green 
growth in Cumbria identified the potential 

for a ‘Colette’ offshore development off 
West Cumbria. This would be a community 
scheme linked to co-generation of hydrogen 
and decarbonisation of the Sellafield site. 
This remains at a very early feasibility stage 
with significant work needed to address all 
aspects of viability.

58



32 33

NATIONAL POSITION

Whilst hydrogen has been produced at 
an industrial level for over 100 years, the 
distribution of hydrogen for energy at a 
commercial scale is a nascent industry. The 
Government issued its Hydrogen Strategy 
in September 2021 outlining the ambition 
for hydrogen to play a key role in areas 
such as decarbonising heavy industry, 
Heavy Goods Vehicles and as a potential 
for domestic heating fuel, commencing 
with a 20% blend with natural gas prior to 
full replacement. It could also be used as a 
means to provide energy storage flexibility 
with variable renewable energy sources. 
The Energy Security Strategy establishes a 
target to achieve 10GW of hydrogen energy 
production by 2030 with half coming through 
the electrolytic green sources.

In 2021 two industrial clusters were 
announced that will combine hydrogen 
generation, carbon capture and industry 
decarbonisation, with “HyNet” in Cheshire 
and “East Coast” for Teeside and 
Humberside. These clusters are expected to 
come on line by 2026. Two more clusters are 
expected to be selected in Track 2 of the 
BEIS process.

The Government has recently announced 
a Hydrogen Investor Roadmap that sets 
out the full integration of its Net Zero 
Hydrogen Fund to provide up to £250m for 
development and capital costs to establish 
a viable infrastructure as well as a £50m 
accelerator fund to develop commercially 
viable electrolytic hydrogen generation 
capability.

FOCUS ON 
HYDROGEN & CCUS

A national “HyDeploy” programme of work 
involving the gas networks (Cadent and 
Northern Gas Networks for Cumbria) aims 
to deliver the evidence to demonstrate 
that a 20% hydrogen blend with natural gas 
could be used for domestic heating without 
retrofit. A progressive series of hydrogen 
villages to towns will then demonstrate the 
viability of 100% hydrogen. Currently 2 large 
villages associated with the HyNet and East 
Coast clusters are being considered for the 
next phase with an expected selection in 
2023. By 2026 this will provide evidence to 
government on the role hydrogen can play 
in domestic heating. A further programme 
of work termed “Project Union” has been 
initiated by National Grid to upgrade the 
gas transmission system between hydrogen 
production centres, industrial users and 
consumers across the nation. This work is 
expected to be completed in the early 
2030s.

CCUS provides carbon storage to enable 
hydrogen to be generated through the 
steam reformation of natural gas that is the 
current major industrial process for hydrogen 
generation. It also offers the potential 
to capture carbon dioxide from energy 
intensive industries as well as capture of CO2 
from direct air capture & storage (DACS)and 
from Bioenergy with Carbon Capture and 
Storage (BECCS). The Government’s Net Zero 
Strategy sets out a target for 30 million tonnes 
of CO2  storage by 2030.

CUMBRIA CURRENT STATUS

Whilst there is no significant current 
generation or use of hydrogen energy 
in Cumbria, the county is well placed to 
establish a hydrogen infrastructure based 
on the following assets:

• Blue Hydrogen /CCUS – The Morecambe 
Bay Gas Fields with the Barrow Gas 
Terminal operated by Spirit Energy offers 
the potential to commence a hydrogen 
energy cluster. Morecambe Bay has a 
carbon storage potential of 5 times that 
of the recently announced HyNet cluster 

• Green Hydrogen – There is significant 
potential for electrolytic hydrogen 
generation from offshore wind in the 
Irish Sea as well as from on shore wind 
in Cumbria and South West Scotland. 
Of particular interest is use of hydrogen 
generation as means of providing 
storage flexibility

• Pink Hydrogen – Development of new 
nuclear capability at Moorside offers 
potential for large scale hydrogen 
generation either through electrolysis or 
directly from high temperature reactors. 
This will become essential if hydrogen is 
to play a substantial role in industrial and 
domestic heating in the UK.

Whilst not at the same scale as large 
industrial clusters in Merseyside, Teeside and 
Humberside, Cumbria has a large number 
of industrial facilities that could make use 
of hydrogen as well as the potential for 
transport hubs associated with the M6 and 
West Coast Rail Mainline.

HYDROGEN TYPOLOGY: 

Hydrogen is the most abundant 
chemical element in the universe 
and has high potential as a clean 
energy source. However it needs to 
be separated through a process that 
requires energy that is sometimes 
represented in a colour code including: 

Blue Hydrogen is produced from 
Natural Gas in a mature process used 
worldwide for industrial uses of hydrogen. 
Carbon Dioxide is produced as a bi-
product so Blue Hydrogen needs to be 
accompanied with Carbon Capture, 
Usage and Storage. (CCUS).

Green Hydrogen is produced through 
electrolysis of water that needs a clean 
energy source of electricity. It offers 
flexibility to offshore wind to use as a form 
of energy storage when offshore wind 
provides more energy than the national 
grid requires at a given time.

Pink Hydrogen is similar to green 
hydrogen where the clean energy 
source for electrolysis is from nuclear 
power. Advanced Modular Reactors 
working at high temperature offer the 
opportunity to produce hydrogen 
directly without the secondary 
electrolysis step.

Whatever the route, deployment 
of hydrogen requires an integrated 
approach for generation, storage and 
transmission with end use.

59



3434 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 35

FORWARD PLANIn addition to the potential assets for 
hydrogen generation, a research facility 
operated by DNV (a global leading quality 
assurance and risk management company) 
at Spadeadam in north Cumbria plays a 
key role in demonstrating the safety and 
viability of use of hydrogen in the existing 
gas transmission network and in domestic 
homes.. The gas network operated by 
Northern Gas Networks and Cadent 
with National Grid offers potential to link 
hydrogen schemes in Cumbria to wider 
schemes at HyNet and East of England.

AMBITION FOR CUMBRIA

Through transition of the 
Morecambe Bay gas industry, 
and proposed investments 
in offshore wind and new 
nuclear Cumbria has a unique 
opportunity to develop the UK’s 
next hydrogen industrial cluster.
Cumbria is well placed to play a leading 
role in the delivery of the UK Hydrogen 
Strategy across all types of generation. Whilst 
low carbon generation sources give the 
preferential route, government strategies 
recognise that blue hydrogen could play a 
transitional role linked to CCUS. This can be 
developed through the following emerging 
schemes:

• Morecambe Bay CCUS/Hydrogen: as 
well as hydrogen generation, there is 
the potential for much wider utilisation 
of CO2 “non-pipeline” storage through 
import from UK heavy industry by ship or 
rail transfer prior to processing through 

Action Lead / Support Timeframe
Support Spirit Energy with proposal 
for Morecambe Bay CCUS/Hydrogen 
Scheme to target the “Track 2” industrial 
cluster funding round by mid 2023

Spirit Energy/ CLEP Summer 2023 

Engagement with interested parties 
(ARUP, RWE, Northern Gas Networks, 
National Grid) to target acceleration 
funding to complete viability studies 
in North Cumbria for green energy 
hydrogen schemes

Arup/CLEP Summer 2022

Work with Cumbria large industries to 
establish potential for deployment of 
hydrogen. 

CLEP By end of 2022.

Work with Gas Networks to establish 
distribution of either blended or 100% 
hydrogen

Cadent/CLEP/NGN By end of 2023

Assist Carlton Power with proposal for 
green hydrogen production in Barrow-
in-Furness by bringing together key local 
stakeholders to support bid into first round 
of BEIS Strand 3 (Net Zero Hydrogen Fund 
and Hydrogen Business Model) funding 
allocation.

CLEP Autumn 2022

the Barrow Gas Terminal for permanent 
storage in Morecambe Bay depleted gas 
fields. This will allow the transition of the 
existing assets and skills base as natural 
gas production ceases by the end of the 
decade. It should be noted that CCUS 
could be developed independently of 
hydrogen production.

• North Cumbria Green Hydrogen 
Production: related to offshore wind 
generation at Robin Rigg as well as at 
the national grid substation at Harker 
north of Carlisle, which receives electricity 
generated from onshore wind in southern 
Scotland. 

• Barrow Green Hydrogen: a feasibility 
study for a green hydrogen production 
facility being developed by Carlton Power 
in conjunction with Kimberly-Clark. The 
project would supply hydrogen directly 
to Kimberly-Clark’s paper mill along with 
other industrial off-takers in Barrow and the 
wider area. The project is initially expected 
to be 35 MW with expansion capacity 
planned for the future as demand grows.

All of the schemes depend on the assessment 
of the business model for generation, storage/
transmission and downstream use that need 
to be understood through viability studies that 
have been proposed. 

The overall potential has been set out in a 
comprehensive report “Hydrogen in Cumbria 
– A Vision for the Future” by Progressive 
Energy.

The ambition is that early delivery of these 
schemes can pave the way for larger scale 
hydrogen generation either through nuclear 
power capability or from new large offshore 
wind development in 2030s. Through the 
CLEP Clean Energy Strategy these potential 
developments can be delivered in an 
integrated manner.

60



36 37

There are a wide range of 
renewable energy technologies 
that Cumbria can develop 
making use of geography, 
natural assets. Delivering on 
the clean energy ambition 
for Cumbria needs to be 
at all levels from the large-
scale developments outlined 
in previous chapters to the 
diverse range of renewable 
opportunities including smaller 
scale community led schemes 
delivered locally in place. 

NATIONAL POSITION

Whilst the Government’s 10 Point Plan 
focused on larger scale clean energy areas, 
the recently published Energy Security 
Strategy paper stated that the UK should 
aggressively explore renewable opportunities 
afforded by our geography and geology. 
The Net Zero Innovation Portfolio discussed 
earlier provides a potential route to develop 
schemes that are most appropriate for 
Cumbria. 

The Energy Security Strategy outlines the 
importance of onshore wind in being 
able to provide affordable clean energy 
but recognises the range of public views 
and promotes putting local communities 
in control where hosting a site will return 
benefits including lower energy bills.

FOCUS ON 
RENEWABLE ENERGY TECHNOLOGIES

Solar energy is also recognised whilst 
highlighting the need to balance land use 
and seek ground-based developments 
on non-protected lands and ensure 
communities continue to have a say and 
environmental protections remain in place.

CUMBRIA CURRENT STATUS

Onshore Wind 

With an abundant prevailing south 
westerly wind, Cumbria currently has 239 
installations around the county generating 
464 GWh of clean energy. Local authority 
plans in Cumbria identify areas that could 
be suitable to host onshore wind but 
recent national policy has curtailed new 
developments in the county.

Solar PV 

Despite northern latitude and weather 
pattern, Cumbria has a reasonable potential 
for solar energy with areas in the west of 
the county with same potential as areas in 
South and Midlands of the UK. Solar Photo 
Voltaic (PV) has been utilised in Cumbria 
in a range of roof top and ground based 
systems for both domestic and commercial 
use. The Community led scheme at 
Cropper Paper Mill at Kendal and Kingmoor 
Industrial Park show how solar can play a 
key role in business decarbonisation. Careful 
consideration is required on appropriate use of 
land between agricultural and energy uses.

Tidal/Hydro 

The tidal range of the Irish Sea coast and 
estuaries and running water in rivers offer 
potential for Cumbria to develop schemes 

in these areas. They also offer the benefit of 
incorporating flood defence requirements 
and improvement to transport links. However, 
high civil engineering costs and negative 
environmental impacts have prevented 
significant progress. Variable river levels limit 
the potential for hydro power for Cumbria 
rivers. 

Feasibility studies into major tidal schemes for 
both Morecambe Bay and the Solway have 
been completed but are not currently being 
actively progressed by developers.

However, technology is improving and there is 
potential to deliver schemes that address the 
high civil costs and environmental concerns. 
For example, a scheme utilising a novel venturi 
turbine application has been developed by 
VerdErg that could offer both tidal and hydro 
applications in Cumbria as well as turbine 
manufacturing opportunities. Tidal Lagoons 
also offer potential opportunities that could be 
developed on the Cumbrian coast that offer 
lower capital cost and lower environmental 
burden.

The Mersey Tidal Power Project is being 
pursued in Liverpool City Region which has the 
potential to provide energy for 1 million homes. 
It is at a concept design stage and through 
the Offshore Energy Alliance, CLEP will retain a 
keen interest to assess opportunities for similar 
undertaking in Cumbria.

Bio-Energy 

Cumbria’s strong agricultural and forestry 
sectors mean that there are a wide range 
of bio-energy developments in the county 
and opportunities to expand these further. 
Examples include:

61



38 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 39

• Anaerobic Digestion of agricultural residues 
or dedicated grown grass offers the 
opportunity to produce bio-methane as 
a fuel. First Milk has installed this capability 
at Aspatria Creamery to support their own 
energy needs and to export to the gas 
national grid. Further schemes are being 
considered in areas such as bracken 
removal.

• Biomass - Iggesund have installed a 
biomass combined heat and power plant 
at their Flimby paperboard mill. In a circular 
sustainable model, local farmers are 
supported to grow short rotation coppice 
willow that is used in the paperboard 
manufacture and the waste material is used 
in the biomass facility, which provides the 
factory heat and power needs as well as 
providing net export to the national grid. 

For both Anaerobic Digestion and Biomass, CO2 
is still generated and as discussed in chapter 8 
opportunities for carbon capture (BECCS) need 
to be developed.

Heat Networks

Heat networks that could utilise heat recovered 
from industry or urban infrastructure and it is 
recognised will need to play a key role for the 
UK to meet its carbon targets cost effectively. 
For Cumbria this could be from retrofit to existing 
facilities or to be incorporated into new clean 
energy sources such as nuclear. Cumbria also 
has a high geothermal energy potential.

From a recent review of renewable energy 
options by the CLEP Clean Energy Panel, Bio- 
Energy and Heat Networks were considered 
as key areas of opportunity for Cumbria and a 
more detailed assessment will 
be undertaken. 

Rural Community Energy Fund

The Rural Community Energy Fund (RCEF) 
is a £10m BEIS scheme which supports 
communities in England to scope, seed 
and develop renewable energy projects. A 
number of local schemes are being supported 
in Cumbria including high head hydro 
schemes at Buttermere and in the Duddon 
Valley. Whilst the scheme is now closed to 
new applications, CLEP will support the route 
to delivery for these schemes, alongside 
the North West Net Zero Hub, who are 
administering the programme.

 AMBITION

Cumbria should actively pursue 
all potential renewable sources 
suited to our geography and 
communities and establish 
itself as a national leader 
in implementing rural and 
community clean energy 
schemes. 
For this diverse range of renewable 
opportunities, this strategy focuses on 
applications for bulk clean energy 
generation schemes. Domestic and 
individual industry decarbonisation schemes 
are important and addressed in wider net 
zero plans.

Whatever the renewable clean energy 
source, whether from those described 
above or from any other source such as 
Geo-thermal or disused mines, the path 
to successful implementation needs the 
following:

Action Lead / Support Timeframe
To continue to engage with clean energy 
developers to put in place viable business models 
and community and stakeholder engagement.

CLEP Ongoing

To continue as an active partner in the Zero 
Carbon Cumbria Partnership and Borderlands 
Energy Masterplan Board to support the delivery of 
community energy schemes.

CLEP Ongoing

Actively engage with industry groups such as the 
Offshore Energy Alliance, North West Net Zero Hub 
and BEIS directly to identify new developments that 
could be delivered in Cumbria.

CLEP Ongoing

Carry out a review to assess Heat Network potential 
for Cumbria.

CLEP End of 2022

Complete the RCEF feasibility studies and 
determine way forward for delivery of schemes.

CLEP/North West 
Net Zero Hub.

End of 2022

• A lead developer to bring forward the 
proposed development.

• A willing community to accept and receive 
benefit from the development. Community 
led developments could play a key role for 
the deployment of renewables in Cumbria.

• A business model drawing on public and 
private funding to deliver sustainable clean 
energy outcome.

CLEP will play a key facilitation role to promote 
the development and address the key 
factors above. Such renewable schemes 
lend themselves to be community run and 
CLEP will work together with partners such as 
Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership/Cumbria 
Action for Sustainability and the Lake District 
Foundation for delivery. It is also envisioned 
that the Borderland Energy Masterplan will be 
a stimulus for rural community clean energy 
schemes. These schemes could provide 

decentralised, small scale energy generation 
at a community level. The renewable energy 
technology delivery pathway seeks to anchor 
opportunities, benefits and growth locally, 
through enabling and identifying locally based 
developers, upskilling the local workforce, 
attracting and retaining skills and ensuring 
benefits are retained locally.

Overall, Cumbria has a huge natural resource 
potential across a wide range of renewable 
sources. This strategy establishes an ambition 
to provide greater focus to work in partnership 
with developers, local government and 
communities to deliver renewable energy 
schemes which support decarbonisation in 
rural communities, establish a market leading 
supply chain capability and make steady 
progress where larger scale infrastructure 
projects will take longer to put in place.

FORWARD PLAN

62



40 41

NATIONAL POSITION

The Energy Security Strategy lays out two 
key challenges to ensure that the UK has 
an electricity network both large enough to 
meet the anticipated increased demand 
from electrification of energy supply as 
well as the flexibility to manage supply and 
demand with variable renewable sources 
to ensure availability and reduce wastage. 
It sets out the requirement for an Energy 
Networks Commissioner and a Holistic 
Network Design (HND) by the end of 2022.

As well as the electricity network this also 
includes the natural gas mains network and 
the potential to transition to blended and 
then pure hydrogen is described in  
chapter 8.

Storage of renewable energy is therefore 
important, and this can be achieved 
either through battery storage or via an 
intermediate product such as hydrogen or 
other alternatives such as bio-fuels  
or ammonia.

FOCUS ON 
NETWORK STORAGE AND FLEXIBILITY

CUMBRIA CURRENT STATUS

The regional electricity distribution grid 
was originally built from the early 1930s 
to the 1960s and has been periodically 
replaced and upgraded at various times 
since its construction. 

Electricity North West continues to assess 
demand and capacity of the network 
and a number of improvements are 
either proceeding or are outlined in the 
“ED2” business plan for 2023 -2038 that 
will deliver over £1.8 billion investment to 
enable the region to achieve net zero 
and to improve reliability, where recent 
storms have challenged the supply across 
the county. One example of this is the 
“re-stringing” of a major regional power 
line that will deliver a further 300MW for 
Cumbria. National Grid is also investing in 
improved power control at the Harker Sub 
Station that will deliver a further 500MW of 
capacity by the end of 2022.

Whilst the proposed improvements give 
capacity for new clean energy in the 
county, for the biggest gigawatt scale 
large nuclear facility or equivalent offshore 
wind energy, new distribution capability 
would be needed. This was evaluated 
for the NUGEN proposal for Moorside and 
would have necessitated the installation 
of major new grid connections via both 
north and south routes to the grid. The 
multi-billion pound scheme was factored 
into the delivery of the overall project.

As stated previously, electricity from 
the Robin Rigg Offshore development 
is connected to the grid at Workington 
but all the offshore developments to the 
south of the county are connected to the 
grid in Lancashire. The new offshore wind 
developments in Morecambe Bay will not be 
connected through Cumbria.

Two Battery Energy Storage Systems (BESS) 
exist in Cumbria that provide service to the 
National Grid. Expansion of battery storage 
could be considered in support of any new 
clean energy generation.

For natural gas, Cumbria is served by the 
national transmission system with Cadent 
operating the system in the south of the 
county and Northern Gas Networks in 
the north. There is a dedicated line to the 
Sellafield Combined Heat and Power plant 
from the Barrow Gas Terminal.

This chapter focuses on the ability of our Electricity and Gas 
Networks to support clean energy generation in Cumbria. Wider 
aspects of electrification to achieve net zero are addressed in 
other strategy documents, for example the provision of electrical 
vehicle charging points is covered in the Cumbria Transport 
Infrastructure Plan.

63



42 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 43

FORWARD PLAN

AMBITION

To collaborate and secure 
investment from Network 
Operators to deliver Cumbria’s 
Clean Energy Ambition. 
The overall ambition is that Clean Energy 
Generation for Cumbria is not constrained 
by the electricity and gas networks.  CLEP’s 
Transport and Infrastructure Strategy 
Group has excellent engagement with the 
Electricity and Gas distribution companies 
and ongoing dialogue to ensure distribution 
and capacity requirements are established 
for any new clean energy development for 
Cumbria.

Delivering the opportunities outlined in this 
strategy will provide clean energy sources 
that will in turn provide the potential to 
attract industries that could make direct 
use to decarbonise. This could be done at a 
large industrial scale through combination 
of the nuclear, offshore and hydrogen/
CCUS schemes. Such schemes are being 
developed in the HyNet and East Coast 
Industrial clusters. A number of sites have 
been identified in Cumbria where clean 
energy parks could be delivered. It could 
also be achieved at a rural community level 
through the range of renewable options.

Action Lead / Support Timeframe
Electricity North West and National Grid deliver 
on the planned investments to improve grid 
capacity and reliability through published 
business plans up until 2038.

ENW / National Grid Ongoing

Put in place a plan to develop clean energy 
parks in Cumbria to attract new industry to 
utilise clean energy.

CLEP March 2023

64



4444 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 45

DELIVERING OUR 
AMBITIONS
SECURING INVESTMENT AND 
DELIVERING IMPACT

Cumbria has a unique opportunity to be a 
major contributor to generating clean energy 
through leveraging its natural assets and 
industrial heritage. 

The Scale Of Future Clean Energy Jobs In 
Cumbria 

An economic assessment has been 
completed for CLEP reviewing national level 
assessments by bodies such as The Low 
Carbon and Renewable Energy Economy 
(LCREE), Local Government Association and 
the Climate Change Commission on the 
scale of clean energy related job growth in 
the UK.

A broad top-down approach to estimating 
the scale of growth in clean energy sector 
jobs takes into account the generation of 
electricity and heat and the production of 
alternative fuels plus fuel cells and storage. In 
the UK in 2020 there were an estimated 59,000 
FTE jobs supported by these sectors and in 
England 45,000 FTE jobs (around 75% of the 
UK figure) primarily in nuclear, offshore wind, 
renewable heat and bioenergy. 

One set of reputable forecasts is that the 
total jobs in clean energy will grow by of the 
order of 350,000 to reach around 400,000 by 
2030 and then a further 430,000 to reach of 
the order of 830,000 by 2050. However, it must 
be stressed that these forecasts are subject 
to considerable uncertainty as they suggest 
potentially a faster pace than implied by 
the government estimates of jobs supported 
by 2030 in the pathway to net zero by 2050. 

These estimates were produced in 2020 
and so could not have taken into account 
the recent energy generation strategy and 
greater focus on new nuclear. 

Cumbria’s share of future clean energy jobs 
will depend on a variety of factors including 
Cumbria’s role in direct generation of clean 
energy (construction and operation) and 
then the role of Cumbrian firms in supplying 
the sector. 

We have developed two scenarios: one 
based broadly on existing shares of all jobs; 
the other based on an increased share of 
the future prize reflecting Cumbria’s potential 
advantages as a location for clean energy 
generation and also the expertise of some 
of our firms in supply parts of the sector and 
our strong manufacturing and specialised 
construction base.

The map overleaf summarises the spatial 
opportunities for the Cumbria Clean Energy 
Cluster. 

Cumbria Action For Sustainability 
commissioned a ‘Potential for Green Jobs 
in Cumbria’ study in 2021 and estimated 
9,000 net green jobs could be created 
over a 15-year transition period to 2037, 
taking a broader view to include jobs in the 
decarbonisation of transport, industry and 
buildings, as well as clean energy. Whilst 
there is uncertainty on precise numbers the 
overall scale for high quality jobs is clear 
within the range of 7,500 to 13,000.

Potential scale of extra jobs in clean energy sector based on applying 
different shares of potential national growth 

000s of jobs Scenario 1:  Base
Cumbria - applying existing share 
of all jobs in England

Scenario 2:  Ambitious
Cumbria - applying existing share of 
manufacturing GVA in England

Shared used 0.95% 1.62%

All jobs in Cumbria 2019 (all 
sectors of the economy)

255,000 255,000

Growth to 2030 3.34 5.70

Growth 2030 to 2050 4.14 7.05

Total Growth 7.48 12.75

Compared to all jobs in 2019 (%) 2.9% 5.0%

Total Clean Energy Job Growth 7,650 12,750

Source: Nicol Economic estimates Note: excludes jobs in nuclear decommissioning

65



4646 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 47

1. Carlisle Energy Hub

2. Workington Energy Hub

3.  Moorside and Sellafield 
Energy Hub

4. Barrow Green Energy Hub

5. Cumbria Wide Rural Test Bed

• Hydrogen generation

• Offshore Wind

• Port development

• STEP fusion

• EPR large new build

• Hydrogen generation

• Offshore and onshore wind 

• Solar power

• Direct air capture

• Synthetic fuels

• Low carbon Sellafield Ltd.

• Hydrogen generation

• Carbon Storage

• Offshore Wind

• Low carbon BAE Systems

• Hydro / Tidal
• Onshore Wind
• Bio Energy
• Solar
• Geothermal /Heat Networks

• Transport hydrogen hub

• Hydrogen generation

• North / South / East / West Road 
and Rail

• Regional hydrogen bus hub

• Carlisle Airport

Key:

Cumbria Clean Energy 
Cluster Ambition

66



Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 494848

KEY DELIVERY PRINCIPLES

Key delivery principles which underpin the 
approach to delivering the Cumbria Clean 
Energy Strategy include: 

• Strategic Focus: Ensuring that clean 
energy generation plays a leading 
contribution in the decarbonisation of 
Cumbria and realisation of net zero 
ambitions, and coalescing stakeholders 
around a shared vision to competitively 
position Cumbria, influence investment 
decisions, and unlock funding 
opportunities.

• Aligning Policy and Investment: 
connecting Cumbria to regional and 
national investments to ensure a holistic 
approach and the ability to maximise 
scale and opportunity; and aligning 
Clean Energy ambitions with enabling 
strategies including skills development, 
business support and capital 
infrastructure.

• Working in Partnership: collaborating with 
key stakeholders to secure investment 
and deliver impact including putting the 
community at the centre of engagement 
to secure support and facilitate a just 
transition to net zero.

• Securing Sustainable Outcomes: 
balancing triple bottom line outcomes 
(environmental, social and economic) 
through investment in Clean Energy. 

ENABLING INVESTMENT

The realisation of these clean energy 
generation opportunities in Cumbria 
requires enabling investment to be 
secured. These will be pursued through 
aligned strategies and funding submissions, 
including:

Enabling Investment Route / Status 

Investment in the existing 
and future workforce to 
meet sector requirements 

• Local Skills Report 2022 (underway)

Upgrade to Cumbria Coast 
Rail Line to support Energy 
Coast ambitions 

• Outline Business Case to the Department for Transport (submitted)
• Full Business Case (next stage)

A595 Grizebeck 
improvement

• Funding secured and scheme forecast to open in 2024 (in progress)

A595 Bothel improvement • LEP funding secured for the reconstruction of the Greyhound/
Torpenhow Junction (in progress)

• A business case for wider A595 Bothel Strategic Improvements has been 
submitted to DfT for match funding (pending)

A595 Whitehaven Relief 
Road

• A range of improvement options for the A595 including a Whitehaven 
Relief Road have been identified and promoted as part of the National 
Highways Route Strategy with consultation held between October-
December 2021

• The Route Strategy will be used to inform National Highways future 
investment decisions for the 2025-2030 period. The Interim Route 
Strategy report will be published in July 2022. 

A590 improvements 
including an Ulverston 
Bypass

• A range of improvement options for the A590 including a Ulverston 
Bypass have been identified and promoted as part of the National 
Highways Route Strategy with consultation held between October-
December 2021

• The Route Strategy will be used to inform National Highways future 
investment decisions for the 2025-2030 period. The Interim Route 
Strategy report will be published in July 2022

ENWL Grid reinforcement • Assessment of current grid capacity and requirements to support new 
clean energy options (identified)

• £2bn investment across the ENW region (approved) 
• New funding model required to support large scale clean energy 

investment (discussions in progress)

Sites and premises • Cumbria Employment Sites and Premises Study assesses current and 
future employment needs, including priority sites for employment 
(complete)

• CLEP and local authorities to facilitate delivery of priority sites to meet 
demand (underway)

Digital connectivity • Cumbria Digital Infrastructure Strategy (2021-2022 update complete)
• CCC delivery of UK Gigabit Programme and Shared Rural Network
• Partnership working with the Borderlands Partnership to support 

investment in digital infrastructure through the Borderlands Inclusive 
Growth Deal

Port of Workington • Port Masterplan (complete)

Port of Barrow • Refreshed masterplan (in development) 

Housing Strategy • Local Plans
• The Cumbria LEP Housing Delivery Strategy and Action Plan (underway)

67



5050 Cumbria Clean Energy Strategy 51

KEY MILESTONES

Delivery of this strategy will lead to clean 
energy outcomes by the following 
timescales:

Nuclear

• New nuclear power generation at 
Sellafield vicinity of approximately 
1GW by 2030 by being one of the first 
deployments of Small Modular Reactors.

• Further development through 
combination of development of a UK 
fusion industry in Cumbria and large 
giga watt scale power station that 
could deliver a further 3.2 GW by 2040. 
First of a kind development could lead 
to deployment of Advanced Modular 
Reactors also by 2040.

• To be a major contributor to 
development of fusion in the UK with 
the siting of the STEP protype facility 
at Moorside that could commence 
operations by 2040.

Offshore

• Cumbria builds on its current 1.8GW of clean 
energy generation to increase to at least 
5GW through future leasing rounds as well 
as to be the Maintenance & Operations 
Hub for the expanding Morecambe Bay 
developments.

Hydrogen

• By 2030 Cumbria can have implemented 
a Morecambe Bay hydrogen generation 
and carbon storage capability as well as a 
hydrogen hub in north Cumbria powered 
by wind energy. Overall, over 1GW of clean 
energy could be produced to play key role 
in decarbonisation of Cumbrian industry and 
decarbonisation of transportation. 

• In combination with hydrogen generation from 
nuclear, Cumbria can be a net contributor of 
hydrogen into the gas distribution system by 
mid 2030s to decarbonise domestic heating.

Renewables

• By 2030, Cumbria has delivered a portfolio 
of renewable energy schemes appropriate 
for Cumbria that will complement the larger 
schemes and will offer decarbonisation for 
isolated rural communities.

Networks, Storage and Flexibility

• By 2038, Cumbria will have a modernised 
electricity grid system that supports the net zero 
mission for Cumbria.

• By 2030, Cumbria has at least one large 
scale industrial clean energy park and a 
demonstrable number of rural industries supplied 
from direct renewable energy sources.

GOVERNANCE & RELATIONSHIP 
MANAGEMENT 

This document outlines a comprehensive 
strategy spanning a wide range of low 
carbon energy sources from new nuclear 
at Moorside, offshore wind deployment off 
our Irish Sea coast, industrial hydrogen and 
carbon storage to the north of the county 
and Morecambe Bay to the south as well 
as delivering on a wide range of rural and 
community schemes across the entire 
county. These schemes can be delivered in 
a range of delivery models through public, 
private and community level financing.

This can only be delivered through a wide 
range of stakeholders as outlined in the table 
below.

this will be performed through the Clean 
Energy Panel with representation spanning 
business, local government and independent 
representatives. This will be overseen by the 
LEP Board with annual reporting to provide 
open communication of progress made. It is 
recognised that these arrangements will need 
to align with the new governance structures 
established by the new Cumberland and 
Westmorland and Furness Authorities, and will 
be refined as the new structures are clarified. 

Delivering the Clean Energy Strategy 
touches all aspects of the LEP governance 
arrangements:

• People, Employment & Skills Group

• Ideas & Innovation Group 

• Transport & Infrastructure Group

• Business Support

• Places

• LEP sector panels including Rural, 
Advanced Manufacturing, Construction as 
well as Clean Energy.

The LEP Futures Forum provides the 
opportunity to incorporate views of the 
generation that will need to see this strategy 
through to realise the full decarbonisation 
benefit.

Through representation in Cumbria wide 
groups such as the Zero Carbon Cumbria 
Partnership and Nature Leaders forum this 
strategy will receive wider scrutiny, challenge 
and support to ensure it plays a key role in 
Cumbria achieving net zero. Wider public 
engagement on the strategy is delivered 
through the LEP communication strategy and 
through such forums as Climate Change Jurys 
across the county.

Type of 
Stakeholder

Examples

National Level • Local Skills Report 2022 
(underway)

Regional Level • Northern Powerhouse 
LEPs, Net Zero North 
West, North West 
Business Leaders, 
North West Nuclear 
Arc, Offshore Energy 
Alliance for the North 
West, Net Zero North 
West Hub, Borderlands.

Local Government • MPs, Cumbria County 
Council and the 6 
district councils through 
the transition to the 
Cumberland and 
Westmorland & Furness 
authorities.

This strategy outlines a series of actions 
in each of the sections with clear action 
owners and timescales identified. 
Governance to oversee the delivery of this 
strategy will be performed through the CLEP 
governance structure. At the working level 

68



52

IN CONCLUSION

Overall, this strategy outlines an ambitious 
but achievable plan for Cumbria to achieve 
the following:

1. Clean Energy Generation: an overall 
potential of up to 9GW of clean energy 
generation by 2040 establishing Cumbria 
as a key clean energy producer for 
the UK as well as being a leader of 
developing rural community renewable 
energy schemes.

2. Economic Development: delivery of this 
strategy will drive economic growth with 
up to 13,000 new jobs from clean energy 
deployment. 

3. Innovation: Selection of the Moorside site 
for fusion energy will place Cumbria at 
the heart of the UK and global race for 
abundant long term affordable clean 
energy.

Clear actions are identified to underpin the 
delivery of this strategy and these will be 
monitored by the LEP Clean Energy Panel. 

Putting in place a comprehensive clean 
energy strategy for Cumbria is a challenging 
undertaking. There is a wide range of 
stakeholders with knowledge, vision and 
views that need to be harnessed to deliver a 
fair and deliverable outcome. 

The time is now, government has set out its 
ambition, there is widespread recognition of 
the need for clean energy within the overall 
drive for net zero. Delivery of this strategy 
will play a key role in Cumbria achieving its 
ambitions to lead the way as the UK’s natural 
capital for clean energy generation.

69



70



LEP SCRUTINY BOARD 

Meeting date:    20 September 2022 

 

LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP AGM 2022 

From: Chair, Local Enterprise Partnership Scrutiny Board 

 

1. ISSUE 

1.1 Updating Local Enterprise Partnership Scrutiny Board on the 

representation of the Board at the LEP AGM on Friday 30 September 2022. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note this update. 

2.2 That the LEP Scrutiny Board bring forward any specific feedback for the 

LEP AGM.  

 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 The Vice Chair will represent the LEP Scrutiny Board this year at the 

Annual AGM.  

3.2 The update will include items covered this year which covers: 

• Economic Overview 

• Journey to NET Zero  

• Levelling Up White Paper and implications for the LEP  

• Repurposing the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund 

• Economic Impact Update 

• Labour Supply and Skills 

• CLEP Support for Business 

• Recovery Planning – implementing the rethink theme 

 

3.3 The Board would also like to thank the LEP Chair and Chief Executive for 

their pro-active involvement in Scrutiny activity ensuring that this can be 

effective and add value.  

 

Report author 

Claire Notman, Claire.notman@cumbria.gov.uk  

(9 Sept 2022) 

 

71

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Claire.notman@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 2022/23 DELIVERY PLAN
	6 CUMBRIA CLEAN ENERGY STRATEGY
	7 CLEP ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING UPDATE

